BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OF THE METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY

June 9, 2020

1. Call to order.

2. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of May 12, 2020.

3. Introductions.

4. Public Comments.

5. Executive Director's Report.

COMMITTEE REPORT

6. Report from the Joint Development & Finance Committees.

a. Board of Commissioners Approval of GMP and Financing for Red Oak
Townhomes (Approved by Joint Finance and Development Committee)

b. Board of Commissioners Approval of GMP and Financing for the Trolley Barn
Garage (Approved by Joint Finance and Development Committee)

c. Board of Commissioners Approval of Substantial Amendment to the 2019 Action
Plan (CARES Act Funding) (Approved by Joint Finance and Development

Committee).
7. Board Retreat Requests Review
8. Additional Business.

9. Adjourn.



6a.

6b.

SUMMARY REVIEW OF AGENDA ITEMS FOR
THE MDHA BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

June 9, 2020

EXECUTIVE (HARBISON & THILTGEN)

GMP and Financing for Red Oak Townhomes

At the June 4% Joint Finance and Development Committee meeting, the Committee
approved the Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) and financing for Red Oak Townhomes,
the next phase of Envision Cayce. When complete, Red Oak Townhomes will have 44
units in a mixed income community with 25 affordable housing town homes funded by a
HUD Project Based Rental Assistance (PBRA) contract.

At its meeting on November 12, 2019, the Board approved R.G. Anderson Company, Inc.,
as the Construction Manager at Risk for Red Oak Townhomes. R.G. Anderson has
proposed a GMP of $13,216,132 based on 100% Construction Documents provided by
EOA Architects. With all soft costs included, to include a 5.4% Owner’s Contingency
($719,059) and Architect’s fees of $957,068, the Total Project Budget is $16,550,000.

Red Oak Townhomes will be financed by a $10,600,000 loan from Franklin Synergy Bank
(including a $6 million CITC note and a $4.6 million conventional bank note), together
with grant proceeds from the Metro Government’s Capital Spending Plan. This will be a
mixed-financed development with 25 of the units initially constructed as public housing,
but later converted through RAD to Project-Based Rental Assistance. The proposed
Resolution approves the financing structure and authorizes the Agency to execute such
agreements with HUD as may be required to carry out the mixed-finance project and then
to convert the public housing units to Project-Based Rental Assistance.

As recommended in the Joint Finance and Development Committee meeting, the Board
is requested to approve the financing, R.G. Anderson’s GMP, the Architect's fees, and
the Owner Contingency for Red Oak Townhomes, and to provide the Executive Director
the authority to execute the associated documents.

GMP and Financing for Trolley Barns

At the June 4™ Joint Finance and Development Committee meeting, The Committee
approved the GMP and financing for the Trolley Barns Parking Garage at Rolling Mill Hill.
The garage will be 5 stories with 378 parking spaces.

At its meeting on November 12, 2019, the Board approved R. C. Mathews Contractor as
the Construction Manager at Risk for the Trolley Barns Parking Garage. R. C. Mathews
Contractor has proposed a GMP of $12,380,088.00 based on 85% Construction Drawings



6¢c.

SUMMARY REVIEW OF AGENDA
PAGE 2
June 9, 2020

prepared by Kline Swinney Associates. With all soft costs, the Total Project Budget is
$14,215,617.00 including a 5% Owner’s Contingency ($617,500).

The Trolley Barns Garage will be financed in part by a $11,900,000 construction financing
loan from Pinnacle Bank. Additional sources for this project include $2,000,000 in
unrestricted funds from MDHA.

The Board is requested to approve financing, R. C. Mathews Contractor's GMP and the
Owner Contingency for the Trolley Barns Parking Garage; and to authorize the Executive
Director to execute the associated contractual and financing documents. The proposed
Resolution approves the financing structure and authorizes the Agency to execute such
agreements with Pinnacle Bank.

Approval of Substantial Amendment to the 2019 Action Plan (CARES Act
funding)

The June 9" Joint Finance and Development Committee meeting will review the
Substantial Amendment to the 2019 Action Plan for CARES Act Funding. Nashville —
Davidson County received initial allocations of $3,125,875 in Community Development
Block Grant-Coronavirus; $1,549,066 in Emergency Solutions Grant-Coronavirus; and
$225,186 in Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids-Coronavirus funding through
the CAREs Act legislation to be used to prevent, prepare for and mitigate the impacts of
the COVID-19 Pandemic. HUD advised MDHA to amend the latest approved Action Plan
to incorporate eligible activities to use these funds to respond to the COVID-19 outbreak.
Subject to Committee approval, Board approval is requested for substantial amendments
to the 2019 Action Plan and 2018-2023 Consolidated Plan to allocate CARES Act funding
to eligible projects/activities for use in preventing, preparing for and mitigating the impacts
of the COVID-19 Pandemic.



MEETING MINUTES

OF

THE METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY

The regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Metropolitan Development and
Housing Agency was held on Tuesday, May 12, 2020, at 11:30 a.m. via WebEx in the Collaboration Room
of the Gerald F. Nicely Building, 701 South Sixth Street, Nashville, Tennessee.

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

ALSO PRESENT:

Bill Purcell, Chair

Emily Thaden, Vice Chair of Finance
Aole Ansari, Vice Chair of Development
Antoinette Batts

Kay Bowers

Marcus Campbell

Paulette Coleman

James Harbison, Executive Director

James Thiltgen, Deputy Executive Director

Saul Solomon, Legal Counsel

David Dellinger, Chief Operating Officer

Will Choppin, General Counsel

Will Biggs, Director of Affordable Housing

Melinda Hatfield, Director of Finance

Joe Cain, Director of Urban Development

Emel Alexander, Director of Community Development
Norman Deep, Director for Rental Assistance

Michael Wegerson, Director of Recapitalization

Jamie Berry, Director of Communications

Brent Grubb, Acting Director of Construction

Pat Thicklin, Assistant Director of Human Resources

Matt Wiltshire, Chief Strategy and Intergovernmental Affairs Officer
LaTonya Ellis, Executive Office Manager

Denise Hagewood, Executive Office Administrative Assistant
Terece Rollins-Walton, President, Parkway Terrace

Chair Bill Purcell called the meeting to order and requested approval of the minutes of the
meeting of April 14, 2020. Vice Chair Emily Thaden moved adoption of the minutes. Chair Purcell called
for discussion, then stated changes and additions to the April minutes. He stated Commissioner Ansar’s fitle,
Vice Chair of Development, needed to be added. Also on page two, the statement by Saul Solomon, Board
Legal Counsel, should include the following: the meeting was broadcast via Webex; the meeting complied
with Governor Lee's Executive Order 16; the meeting was recorded for future viewing on Youtube; and the



public was given instruction and opportunity to participate. Vice Chair Thaden moved for adoption of the
following resolution:

Resolution No. 18-20

‘RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Metropolitan
Development and Housing Agency, that it hereby approves the minutes of
the meeting of April 14, 2020, as amended.”

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Bowers, and upon vote all voted “aye”. None
voted “no”.

Chair Purcell introduced Mrs. Terece Rollins-Walton, President of Parkway Terrace
Resident Association. Mrs. Rollins-Walton stated how appreciative she was of MDHA leadership and staff
during the storm. And how grateful she and others were for the resources provided to residents. Chair Purcell
thanked Mrs. Rollins-Walton and the Resident Association for their leadership.

Chair Purcell asked if there were any public comments. Jamie Berry, MDHA Director of
Communications stated there were no public comments. She provided instruction on how the public is able
to participate in the web-based meeting and give comments. The instructions are posted on the MDHA
website, on the Metropolitan Davidson County Government's website, and in the Tennessean newspaper.

Chairman Purcell called for the Executive Director's Report. Mr. James Harbison, MDHA
Executive Director, updated the committee on the Agency’s Covid-19 efforts. As of March 7t the agency
ceased any staff travel, ordered and distributed safety equipment and encouraged employees and residents
to follow CDC virus prevention guidelines. By mid-March, the resident Towers were identified as high-risk for
the virus. Restrictions and guidelines were immediately put in place for visitors, package and food deliveries,
etc. By the end of March, MDHA leadership had researched virus testing options for residents and started
preparing for approximately 60% of employees to work from home. During that time, the maintenance team
was split into two teams to ensure maintenance of MDHA properties was kept up. Mr. Harbison thanked
Councilwoman Sharon Hurt, Jerry Maynard, Dr. Alicia Hall, Meharry General, MDHA staff and numerous
others for their help. He announced the upcoming mandatory testing of all MDHA staff and the offer of
voluntary testing to more residents. Mr. Harbison asked for questions or comments from the Board. Chair
Purcell stated that as the landlord for the largest elderly population in the city, that he was very thankful for
the low infection rates as a result of the efforts and collaboration with other city leaders and organizations.
The testing that will be offered will be done as a service to our residents, strictly voluntary, and conducted in
a welcoming manner. Test results would be kept confidential except in the case of a positive result. Any
positive results would be reported to the Department of Health as a matter of public health safety. Mr. Purcell
stated that during these difficult and complicated times, MDHA is focused on supporting its residents and
staff. Saul Solomon, Board Legal Counsel stated the individuals conducting the Covid testing are to keep a
person’s information confidential under HIPAA requirements. He stated that neither MDHA nor the National
Guard would receive the personal information. The only exception to the HIPAA requirement is the State
Department of Health and the Metro Health Department have the right to release information to First
Responders. Commissioner Bowers asked what happens to their information and how are they informed of



their results. Mr. Harbison replied, the person being tested signs a document before testing that gives that
information. He also stated the information had been included in mailings and electronic correspondences.
Commissioner Campbell said there were some groups of people that were spreading false information to
residents and trying to discourage them from participating in the testing. He thanked Mr. Harbison for
addressing those rumors early. Mr. Harbison asked that Commissioners Campbell and Batts continue to
spread a positive message about the testing. He stated maintenance staff would also be going door to door
to get the word out about the voluntary testing. Commissioner Batts said she was especially concerned for
the maintenance staff as she sees them daily in their personal protective equipment (PPE) gear. She stated
she was thankful the virus testing was being made available to residents and staff. Chair Purcell stated Mr.
Harbison has been in constant communication with the National Guard to assure they are not coming in as
a threat, but welcoming to our residents. At the conclusion of the Executive Director’s report, Mr. Harbison
stated the Agency'’s financials were fine. The 14 developments were on schedule and afl MDHA programs
were successfully meeting their targets.

Chair Purcell next recognized Vice Chair Emily Thaden, who gave the Joint Development
and Finance Committee report. The Committee met on May 7th and May 12th via Webex. The joint Committee
discussed the COVID-19 efforts that Mr. Harbison just went over. There was an annual review of the
Agency's on-going legal litigation. A presentation was given by Carol Naughton of Purpose Built
Communities, to educate the members on Envision projects. The Committee voted to move the interest rate
modification on 10t and Jefferson to the Full Board. This modification would result in over $1 million dollars
in savings. The Committee also discussed the Red Oak Townhomes and phase one of the Cayce utilities
plan, Michael Wegerson would bring this issue before the Board for vote in July.

Chair Purcell called upon Joe Cain, Director of Urban Development, who presented the 808
at Skyline Ridge PILOT agreement. The MDHA joint Finance and Development Committee approved the
agreement during its April 9 meeting. Mr. Cain asked the Board to approve the PILOT. Vice Chair Thaden
moved for adoption of the following resolution:

Resolution 19-20

‘RESOLUTION APPROVING A PILOT AGREEMENT BETWEEN MDHA
AND 808 AT SKYLINE RIDGE, L.P.

Effective Date: May 12, 2020

WHEREAS, LDG Development has established a limited partnership, 808
at Skyline Ridge, L.P., to acquire parcels located at 820 and 808 Skyline
Ridge Drive, and develop a 178-unit mixed use affordable housing complex.

WHEREAS, The developer has applied for a 4% LIHTC allocation from
THDA on February 13, 2020 to help finance the construction of this
complex. The tax credit will result in an equity amount of approximately
$16.2 million.



WHEREAS, 808 at Skyline Ridge, when completed, will include 7
residential buildings and modern amenities, including a pool, fitness center,
business center, community room, and dog park. The project will contain
96 two-bedroom units and 82 three-bedroom units.

WHEREAS, the average income of all residents will be restricted to no more
than 60% of area median income (AMI), with no tenant earning above 80%
AMI.

WHEREAS, the developer of this property, 808 at Skyline Ridge, L.P., has
submitted an application to MDHA for a Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT),
which is made a part of these minutes by reference and filed with other
documents for this meeting. The agreement would require 808 at Skyline
Ridge, L.P. to make a total initial payment of $20,114 in lieu of property
taxes after the project is placed in service. The PILOT would increase by
3% annually over the 10-year life of the agreement. This PILOT payment
was based on a review of the applicant's sources and uses, debt
obligations, as well as projected cash flows to the property.

BE IT RESOLVED, MDHA estimates this to be a tax abatement of
approximately $361,011 for the first year the property is placed in service.
The current uses of the site generate $2,586 in annual property tax.
Leaving MDHA's annual abatement capacity at $1,204,908.

FURTHER RESOLVED, authority is given to the Executive Director to take
the necessary steps, including submission to the Metropolitan Council, and
authorize the Executive Director to execute all necessary documents for
implementing the PILOT that will include property transfer and execution of
leases.”

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Bowers, and upon vote all voted “aye”. None
voted “no”.

Chair Purcell called upon Emel Alexander, Director of Community Development for the next
agenda item, approval of the HOME Investment Partnership Program Funding. During the April 9t meeting
of the MDHA joint Finance and Development meeting, the Committee voted in favor of disbursing $4,321,930
in HOME Investment Partnership Program Funding. Vice Chair Emily Thaden and Commissioner Kay Bowers
both recused themselves from the HOME discussion and vote. Commissioner Ansari, Vice Chair of
Development, moved adoption of the following resolution:

Resolution 20-20

‘RESOLUTION APPROVING THE AWARD OF HOME FUNDS FOR THE
DEVELOPMENT OF NEW AFFORDABLE HOUSING CONTINGENT
UPON RECEIPT OF THE 2020 HOME FUNDS IN THE FALL OF 2020.



WHEREAS, In November 2019, MDHA issued a Request for Applications
(RFA) from nonprofit and for-profit developers for financing new affordable
housing development. MDHA allocated a minimum of $3,412,486 in HOME
funds for eligible rental (rented to households with incomes < 60% AMI)
and homeownership projects (sold to households with incomes < 80% AMI)
as described in the 2018-2023 Consolidated Plan and annual updates.

WHEREAS, $375,000 of this allocation was set-aside for projects to be
owned, sponsored, or developed by nonprofit organizations designated as
Community Housing Development Organizations (CHDOs).

WHEREAS, The amount of available 2019 HOME funds will be combined
with $909,444 in the 2020 HOME funding, once received in the fall, to cover
the full request of all rental housing developers.

WHEREAS, One (1) nonprofit organization submitted an application for
funding for homebuyer projects; and three (3) nonprofit organizations and
one (1) for-profit organization submitted applications for funding for rental
projects.

WHEREAS, The Application Review Committee evaluated all applications
in accordance with the criteria set forth in the Application.

BE IT RESOLVED, the following non-profit and for-profit developers will be
awarded HOME funds to build new affordable housing for rental and
homeownership contingent upon receipt of the 2020 HOME funds in the
fall:

Developer Project Type # HOME HOME HOME CHDO Total
Units
Non-CHDO Award Award
Award

Woodbine Community Rental 54 $2,040,000 $0 2,040,000
Organization
Campus Crossroads Rental 22 $1,506,090 $1,506,090
Be a Helping Hand Rental 2 $0 $375,000.00 $375,000
Foundation
Habitat for Humanity | Homebuyer 15 $400,840 $0 $400,840
TOTAL 27 $3,946,930 $375,000 $4,321,930




BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Executive Director is authorized to
execute the necessary documents regarding the award of HOME funds at
the appropriate time.

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Batts, and upon vote all voted “aye’. None
voted “no”.

Mr. Alexander also presented the next item on the agenda, approval of the 2020 Action plan
and substantial amendment to the Consolidated Plan for Housing and Community Development. During the
April 9th meeting, the MDHA joint Finance and Development Committee discussed and approved the 2020
Action Plan for submittal to HUD. The Committee also approved a Substantial Amendment 2 to the 2018-
2023 Consolidated plan that provide clarifications/changes to the original plan. Commissioner Kay Bowers
recused herself from discussion and vote. Commissioner Ansari moved adoption of the following resolution:

Resolution 21-20

RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Metropolitan
Development and Housing Agency, that it hereby approves Substantial
Amendment 2 to the 2018-2023 Consolidated and the 2020-2021 Action
Plan.

WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Council designated MDHA as the lead agency
responsible for the development and administration of the Five Year
Consolidated Plan and corresponding annual action plans for Housing and
Community Development for Metropolitan Nashville-Davidson County in
Resolution R94-1396.

WHEREAS, The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD) requires a Consolidated Plan to be completed every five years and
an Annual Action Plan to be completed each program year.

WHEREAS, the current Consolidated Plan covers the period June 1, 2018
through May 31, 2023, and we have completed two program years.

WHEREAS, MDHA has prepared for submittal to HUD Substantial
Amendment 2 to the 2018-2023 Consolidated Plan and the Annual Update
for Program Year Three (2020 Action Plan). Program Year Three will begin
on June 1, 2020.

WHEREAS, MDHA released the draft of Substantial Amendment 2 and the
2020 Action Plan for public on comment on March 10, 2020 and accepted
public comments through April 10, 2020.

WHEREAS, A public hearing scheduled for March 237, was cancelled
because of the “Safe at Home” requirements due to COVID-19. This public
hearing was rescheduled for April 9t and held via Goto webinar. It was



no".

advertised in the Tennessean, via social media and emailed to all contacts
in the Department of Community Development's data base.

WHEREAS, The 2020 Action Plan describes community needs and funding
priorities for the 2020-2021 Program Year (June 1, 2020 through May 31,
2021) and serves as Metro Nashville's application for receiving funds for
the following programs: Community Development Block Grant (CDBG),
HOME Investment Partnerships Program (HOME), the Emergency
Solutions Grant (ESG), and Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS
(HOPWA).

WHEREAS, MDHA also has prepared Substantial Amendment 2 to the
Consolidated Plan concurrent with this Action Plan, to provide the following:

Allow Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds allocated for
Weatherization Assistance to serve homeowners whose incomes are at or
below 80% of the Area Median Income (AMI) limit as per CDBG income
guidelines;

Provide amended language to the Citizen Participation Plan contained in
Appendix A of the Consolidated Plan to clarify that the criteria for a
substantial amendment is a fiscal change in any program/project that is
increased or decreased by more than 25% of the total HUD allocation of
CDBG, Home Investment Partnerships Program (HOME), Emergency
Solutions Grant (ESG) and Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids
(HOPWA) of the effected program year with the exception as noted. The
Citizen Participation Plan, as amended, is included as Appendix G to the
Annual Update for Program Year 3; and

Amend language to the description section of the Strategic Plan (SP) 25
Priority Need #3 — Retain Affordable Housing Stock of the Consolidated
Plan to clarify that the amount of CDBG funds to be allocated to this Priority
Need will be a majority of the balance of funds from the annual allocation
after deductions for the 20% allocation for Administrative Activities and 15%
for Public Service Activities.

BE IT RESOLVED, the 2020 Action Plan will also be presented to the Metro
Council for approval.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, following Metro Council approval, MDHA will
forward the required certifications to Mayor Cooper, and then submit the
document to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development for
review and approval.

The motion was seconded by Vice Chair Thaden, and upon vote all voted “aye”. None voted



Chair Purcell called for the next item on the agenda, review of Retreat items and agenda
going forward. Mr. Harbison asked to defer this agenda item until the next meeting.

There being no further business to come before the Board, the Chair declared the meeting
adjourned.

Secretary

APPROVED:

This day of , 2020.

Chair



METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

June 5, 2020
TO: James Harbison, Executive Director
FROM: LaTonya Ellis, Administrative Assistant to the Executive Director

SUBJECT: Attendance for Board Meeting — June 9, 2020

Ms. Lillian Maddox-Whitehead, President of Vine Hill Apartments Resident
Association and Ms. Arlene Cummings, Property Manager of Vine Hill
Apartments, will be present at the Board meeting per teleconference.

LoDt h,

Y~ LaTonya Ellis




METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

June 9, 2020
TO: Board of Commissioners
FROM: Michael Wegerson, Director of Recapitalization

SUBJECT: Red Oak Townhomes, Construction Manager GMP, adjusted Architect’s Fee, and
Owner Contingency

Board approval is requested for the following items for the Red Oak Townhomes Project and for
authorization for the Executive Director to sign all associated documentation on behalf of the
agency:

1. Construction Manager’s Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) of $13,216,132.00,
including $300,000 (2.2%) Owner-Controlled Contractor Contingency;

2. Architect’s Fee for Basic Services as adjusted to 6.4% of the GMP is now $845,833.00
plus additional services approved previously of $111,235, for a total Architect’s Fee of
$957,068; '

3. Owner Contingency of $719,059 (5.4%);
4. Total Project Budget of $16,550,000;

Red Oak Townhomes will be located between Dew Street and Lenore Street immediately east of
Boscobel III. The project will consist of 44 townhome style walk-up apartments in seven 2- to 4-
story stick framed buildings with surface parking. The cost of construction includes the creation
of Red Oak Hill Lane and off-site infrastructure work in Lenore Street to meet the requirements
of Metro Planning, Metro Public Works, and Metro Water Services. The unit mix will include 1,
2, 3,4, and 5 bedroom units. 25 of the units will be Project Based Rental Assistance (PBRA)
units at 80% AMI and below to satisfy the Community Investment Tax Credit (CITC)
requirements.

At the November 12, 2019, meeting the Board approved MDHA to enter into negotiations with
R.G. Anderson Company, Inc., as Construction Manager at Risk. The Architect, EOA
Architects, provided R.G. Anderson with 100% Construction Documents for pricing. R.G.
Anderson has provided MDHA a Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal for $13,216,132.00 to
construct the Red Oak Townhomes. This GMP includes $300,000 for Owner-Controlled
Contractor contingency. The GMP must be accepted by July 11", 2020. The date of Substantial
Completion is scheduled for August 31, 2021 with Final Completion by September 30, 2021.

Al YV

Michael Wegerson




RESOLUTION BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF METROPOLITAN
DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY

Effective Date: June 9, 2020

The undersigned, being a quorum of the Board of Commissioners of Metropolitan
Development and Housing Agency (“MDHA”), at a duly called meeting on June 9, 2020, acting
in accordance with the applicable provisions of the T.C.A. § 13-20-101, et. seq., and its Charter
and Bylaws, do hereby adopt the following resolutions to be effective as of the date hereof:

WHEREAS, MDHA owns certain property generally located on Rolling Mill Hill,
including Parcel H and Parcel K (together, the “Property™), which on a portion of Parcel H it
intends to construct a 375 space parking garage (the “Project™).

WHEREAS, Pinnacle Bank Bank (the “Lender”) is making a construction and permanent
loan to MDHA in the approximate maximum principal amount of Fourteen Million Five Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($14,500,000) in construction financing, or such other amounts as may be
appropriate at the discretion of the Authorized Representative (as defined below), to finance
construction and operation of the Project (collectively, the “Pinnacle Loan”) to be evidenced by a
Promissory Note in the amount of the Pinnacle Loan (the “Note;”)

WHEREAS, MDHA intends to pledge as collateral for the Pinnacle Loan its interests in
the Property, the Project, including its rights under that Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real
Estate dated January 30, 2017 between Rolling Mill Hill Partners, LLC as Buyer and MDHA as
Seller, as the same has been amended (the “Purchase Agreement™), to be evidenced by, among
other things, a deed of trust, assignment of leases, rents and profits, collateral assignments of
purchase agreement, and such other documents (the “Security Instruments;”) subject to existing
leases, purchase agreements, and other encumbrances ;

NOW BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED, that MDHA is hereby authorized and directed
to negotiate, execute, deliver, and perform the Note, Security Instruments, assignment of
construction documents, and any and all other documents, instruments, agreements, and
certifications required for MDHA to obtain the Pinnacle Loan from Lender (collectively, the “Loan
Documents™); and

FURTHER RESOLVED, that Bill Purcell, the Chair, Emily Thaden, the Vice Chair for
Housing, Aole Ansari, the Vice Chair for Development, James E. Harbison, acting as either the
Secretary-Treasurer or Executive Director, and James L. Thiltgen, acting as Deputy Executive
Director in the absence of the Executive Director, respectively, of MDHA (each, an “Authorized
Representative™), be, and each hereby are, or any one of them, acting along, be, and hereby is,
authorized and empowered, on behalf of MDHA, to execute and deliver the Loan Documents, and
all documents contemplated therein, and that any and all documents previously executed and
delivered by any such Authorized Representative with respect to the Project and Pinnacle Loan
are hereby ratified and approved; and



FURTHER RESOLVED, that any and all acts heretofore taken by any Authorized
Representative in connection with the matters authorized by the foregoing resolutions are hereby
ratified, confirmed, adopted and approved by the Board of Commissioners of MDHA.



CERTIFICATE

I, James E. Harbison, do hereby certify that I am the duly elected Secretary-Treasurer of
MDHA and the keeper of records of MDHA. These resolutions were duly adopted at the meeting
of the Board of Commissioners of MDHA, held in accordance with the Charter and Bylaws of
MDHA, at the office of MDHA at 701 South 6th Street, Nashville, Tennessee, on the day

of June, 2020.

By:

James E. Harbison
Secretary-Treasurer



METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOSUING AGENCY
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM
May 29, 2020
TO: MDHA Board of Commissioners
FROM: James E. Harbison, Executive Director

SUBJECT: Financing for Red Oak Townhomes (Boscobel Ill)

The Agency is preparing to begin the construction of a development to be known as the Red
Oak Townhomes, 44 mixed-income apartments to be built on Dew Street within the Cayce
Place community. Franklin Synergy Bank has offered to provide ten million six hundred
thousand dollars ($10,600,000) in construction and permanent financing for this development.
The financing will include a Community Investment Tax Credit (“CITC”) note of six million dollars
($6,000,000) and a conventional bank note of four million six hundred thousand dollars
($4,600,000. At the completion of construction and stabilization of the property, the CITC note
will convert to a term loan of 18 years, while the conventional bank note will be due and
payable. The conventional bank note will be repaid from a portion of the ten million five
hundred thousand ($10,500,000) Capital Spending Plan grant the Agency is receiving from the
Metropolitan Government for this project. Interest on the CITC note will be the floating Prime
Rate minus four percent (4%) with a floor of zero percent. Interest on the conventional bank
note will be the floating Prime Rate plus one-half percent (0.5%) with a floor of three and three-
quarters percent (3.75%).

The balance of the funding for this project will come from the remainder of the Metro Capital
Spending Plan grant. Of the 44 units, 25 will be built initially as public housing units. After
completion, they will be converted through the Rental Assistance Demonstration (“RAD”)
program to Project-Based Rental Assistance.

It is requested that the Board of Commissioners adopt the attached Resolution which provides
for the financing of this project as described above, authorizes the required agreements with
HUD to develop mixed-financed housing on a RAD site, and authorizes the later conversion of
the public housing units to Project-Based Rental Assistance.

Dener TN\

Lz/mes E. Harbison

Attachment



INCUMBENCY CERTIFICATE OF
METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY

Effective Date: June _, 2020

i The undersigned is the duly elected, qualified and acting Secretary-Treasurer and
Executive Director of Metropolitan Development and Housing Agency (“MDHA”).

2. Attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is a true, correct, and complete copy of certain
resolutions adopted by the Board of Commissioners of MDHA on June 9, 2020 (the
“Resolutions™). The Resolutions have not been amended or revoked and are now in full force
and effect.

3. MDHA is validly existing under the laws of the State of Tennessee. Attached
hereto as Exhibit “B” is a Certificate of Existence for MDHA issued by the Secretary of State of
the State of Tennessee.

4. Attached hereto as collective Exhibit “C” is a true, correct, and complete copy of
the Certificate of Incorporation of MDHA filed with the Tennessee Secretary of State on
November 9, 1938, together with all Amendments thereto (the “Charter”). The Charter has not
been amended or supplemented in any respect since August 16, 1984, and is in full force and
effect on the date hereof.

4. Attached hereto as Exhibit “D” is a true, correct, and complete copy of the
Bylaws of MDHA, as now in full force and effect.

Sl This certificate is delivered to Franklin Synergy Bank (“Lender”), Bradley Arant
Boult Cummings LLP (“Bradley”), and Reno & Cavanaugh, PLLC (“R&C”). Each of Lender,
Bradley, and R&C, their respective shareholders, directors, members, managers, successors and
assigns, are entitled to rely on this certificate until canceled or amended by delivery to such
entity of a further certificate of the Secretary or other officer of the MDHA.

[remainder of page intentionally blank]



6. The following persons are duly elected officers of MDHA, holding the office as
shown below, and the signature set forth opposite the name of such officers is his true and actual

signature:

Incumbent Office Signature
Bill Purcell Chair
Emily Thaden Vice Chair for Housing

Aole Ansari

Vice Chair for Development

James E. Harbison

Secretary-Treasurer and
Executive Director

James L. Thiltgen

Deputy Executive Director

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has signed this Certificate as of the date first

written above.

I, Bill Purcell, Chair of the MDHA Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that
James E. Harbison is the duly elected and acting Secretary-Treasurer and Executive Director of

James E. Harbison, Secretary-Treasurer and

Executive Director

MDHA, and that the above is his signature.

Bill Purcell, Chair



EXHIBIT “A”

RESOLUTION BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF METROPOLITAN
DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY

Effective Date: June 9, 2020

The undersigned, being a quorum of the Board of Commissioners of Metropolitan
Development and Housing Agency (“MDHA™), at a duly called meeting on June 9, 2020, acting
in accordance with the applicable provisions of the T.C.A. § 13-20-101, et. seq., and its Charter
and Bylaws, do hereby adopt the following resolutions to be effective as of the date hereof:

WHEREAS, MDHA was organized to acquire, construct, develop, lease, manage,
operate, sell, and otherwise provide and address matters concerning decent and affordable
housing in the City of Nashville, Tennessee; and

WHEREAS, MDHA owns certain property generally located at 804 Dew Street,
Nashville, Davidson County, Tennessee, as more particularly described on Schedule 1 attached
hereto (the “Property™), and desires to construct, develop, lease, manage, and operate 44 units of
housing on the Property known internally as Boscobel III-A and to be known externally as Red
Oak Townhomes (the “Project”), to be comprised of (a) 12 units to be rented at market rates (the
“Market Units™), (b) 7 workforce units to be rented at rates affordable to households with
incomes less than 120% of the area median income (the “Workforce Units”), and (c) 25 public
housing units to be rented at rates affordable to households with incomes at or below 80% of the
area median income, adjusted for family size (the “Public Housing Units™); and

WHEREAS, Franklin Synergy Bank (the “Lender”) is making a construction and
permanent loan to MDHA in the approximate maximum principal amount of Ten Million Six
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($10,600,000) in construction financing and Six Million Dollars
($6,000,000) in permanent financing, or such other amounts as may be appropriate at the
discretion of the Authorized Representative (as defined below), to finance construction and
operation of the Project (collectively, the “FSB Loan™); and

WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County (the
“Metro Government™) is making a grant to MDHA in the approximate amount of Ten Million
Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($10,500,000), or such other amount as may be appropriate at
the discretion of the Authorized Representative, to provide additional financing for the
construction and operation of the Project (the “Metro Grant™); and

WHEREAS, MDHA has submitted a Mixed-Finance Development Proposal and related
evidentiary documents to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) to
provide public housing operating subsidy for the Public Housing Units in accordance with HUD
public housing requirements (the “HUD Operating Subsidy”); and

WHEREAS, as soon as permitted by HUD, MDHA intends to convert the Public
Housing Units and HUD Operating Subsidy to Section 8 Project Based Rental Assistance
pursuant to the HUD Rental Assistance Demonstration (“RAD”) program;

{D0524754.DOC/ 1 TN572-106}



NOW BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED, that MDHA is hereby authorized and directed
to negotiate, execute, deliver, and perform a promissory note, deed of trust and assignment of
leases and rents encumbering the Property, assignment of construction documents, and any and
all other documents, instruments, agreements, and certifications required for MDHA to obtain
the FSB Loan from Lender (collectively, the “Loan Documents™); and

FURTHER RESOLVED, that MDHA is hereby authorized and directed to negotiate,
execute, deliver, and perform any and all documents, instruments, agreements, and certifications
required for MDHA to obtain the Metro Grant from the Metro Government (collectively, the
“Metro Grant Documents™); and

FURTHER RESOLVED, that MDHA is hereby authorized and directed to negotiate,
execute, deliver, and perform a Mixed-Finance Amendment to the Consolidated Annual
Contributions Contract, Declaration of Trust/Restrictive Covenants, Partial Release of RAD Use
Agreement, Declaration of Restrictive Covenants, Mixed Finance Certification and Assurances
and any and all other documents, instruments, agreements, and certifications required by HUD in
connection with the HUD Operating Subsidy for the Public Housing Units (collectively, the
“Public Housing Documents™); and

FURTHER RESOLVED, that MDHA is hereby authorized and directed to negotiate,
execute, deliver, and perform a Rental Assistance Demonstration Use Agreement, Section 8
PBRA Housing Assistance Payments Contract, one or more subordination agreements, and any
and all other documents, instruments, agreements, and certifications required by HUD in
connection with the RAD conversion of the Public Housing Units (collectively, the “RAD
Documents” and, collectively with the Loan Documents, the Metro Grant Documents, and the
Public Housing Documents, the “Transaction Documents™); and

FURTHER RESOLVED, that Bill Purcell, the Chair, Emily Thaden, the Vice Chair for
Housing, Aole Ansari, the Vice Chair for Development, James E. Harbison, acting as either the
Secretary-Treasurer or Executive Director, and James L. Thiltgen, acting as Deputy Executive
Director in the absence of the Executive Director, respectively, of MDHA (each, an “Authorized
Representative”), be, and hereby are, or any one of them, acting along, be, and hereby is,
authorized and empowered, on behalf of MDHA, to execute and deliver the Transaction
Documents, and all documents contemplated therein, and that any and all documents previously
executed and delivered by any such Authorized Representative with respect to the Project are
hereby ratified and approved; and

FURTHER RESOLVED, that any and all acts heretofore taken by any Authorized
Representative in connection with the matters authorized by the foregoing resolutions are hereby
ratified, confirmed, adopted and approved by the Board of Commissioners of MDHA.

(Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blank)

{D0524754.DOC/ 1 TN572-106}



CERTIFICATE

I, James E. Harbison, do hereby certify that I am the duly elected Secretary-Treasurer of
MDHA and the keeper of records of MDHA. These resolutions were duly adopted at the
meeting of the Board of Commissioners of MDHA, held in accordance with the Charter and
Bylaws of MDHA, at the office of MDHA at 701 South 6th Street, Nashville, Tennessee, on the

day of June, 2020.

By:

James E. Harbison
Secretary-Treasurer

{D0524754.DOC/ 1 TN572-106}



Schedule 1
Legal Description of the Property

Land in the Sixth Councilmanic District of Davidson County, Tennessee, being a portion
of Lot 3 on the Plat of Cayce Place School Resubdivision of record in Instrument No.
20190719-0070945 in the Register’s Office for Davidson County, Tennessee, more
particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING AT A PK NAIL SET IN THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF DEW
STREET, SAID PK NAIL BEING THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 4,
INSTRUMENT NO. 20190719-0070945 AND THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE
HEREIN DESCRIBED PARCEL; THENCE WITH SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF
DEW STREET, AS FOLLOWS: N 77°31'23" E A DISTANCE OF 174.54 FEET TO A
PK NAIL SET; THENCE WITH A CURVE TURNING TO THE RIGHT WITH AN
ARC LENGTH OF 137.11 FEET WITH A RADIUS OF 629.50 FEET WITH A
CHORD BEARING OF N 83°45'47" E, WITH A CHORD LENGTH OF 136.84 FEET
TO A PK NAIL SET; THENCE WITH A REVERSE CURVE TURNING TO THE
LEFT WITH AN ARC LENGTH OF 10.89 FEET WITH A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET
WITH A CHORD BEARING OF § 47°42'47" E, WITH A CHORD LENGTH OF 10.87
FEET TO A 1/2" IRON PIN SET; THENCE LEAVING SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE
WITH THE EAST LINE OF LOT 3, INSTRUMENT NO. 20190719-0070945 S
06°15'30" W A DISTANCE OF 251.21 FEET TO A 5/8" IRON PIN FOUND IN THE
NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF LENORE STREET; THENCE WITH THE SAID
NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF LENORE STREET, AS FOLLOWS: S 65°11'03"
W A DISTANCE OF 104.37 FEET TO A 1/2" IRON PIN SET; THENCE WITH THE
RIGHT OF WAY LINE AS DEDICATION IN INSTRUMENT NO. 20200320-
0030639, AS FOLLOWS: WITH A CURVE TURNING TO THE LEFT WITH AN
ARC LENGTH OF 42.63 FEET WITH A RADIUS OF 150.02 FEET WITH A CHORD
BEARING OF S 73°27'47" W, WITH A CHORD LENGTH OF 42.49 FEET TO A 1/2"
IRON PIN SET; THENCE S 65°11'02" W A DISTANCE OF 236.79 FEET TO A 1/2"
IRON PIN SET; THENCE WITH A CURVE TURNING TO THE LEFT WITH AN
ARC LENGTH OF 14.46 FEET WITH A RADIUS OF 56.00 FEET WITH A CHORD
BEARING OF S 57°47'12" W, WITH A CHORD LENGTH OF 14.42 FEET TO A 1/2"
IRON PIN IN IN THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 4, INSTRUMENT NO. 20190719-
0070945; THENCE WITH SAID LOT 4, AS FOLLOWS: N 24°5844" W A
DISTANCE OF 156.68 FEET TO A 1/2" IRON PIN SET; THENCE N 65°01'16" E A
DISTANCE OF 45.59 FEET TO A 1/2" IRON PIN SET; THENCE N 24°58'44" W A
DISTANCE OF 105.97 FEET TO A 1/2" IRON PIN SET; THENCE N 65°01'16" E A
DISTANCE OF 29.88 FEET TO A 5/8" IRON PIN FOUND; THENCE N 77°31'23" E
A DISTANCE OF 136.27 FEET TO A 1/2" IRON PIN SET; THENCE N 12°28'37" W
A DISTANCE OF 69.67 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, HAVING AN
AREA OF 119,554 SQUARE FEET, 2.745 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

Being a portion of the same property conveyed to The Nashville Housing Authority, now
known as Metropolitan Development and Housing Agency, by deeds of record in Book

{D0524754.D0C/ 1 TN572-106}



1905, Page 543; Book 1909, Page 581; Book 2751, Page 231, Book 2751, Page 235;
Book 2751, Page 286; Book 2751, Page 321; Book 1906, Page 153; Book 1907, Page
222; Book 2751, Page 292; Book 2751, Page 443; Book 2751, Page 335; and Book

1905, Page 257.

{D0524754.D0OC/ 1 TN572-106}



EXHIBIT “B”

Certificate of Existence of MDHA

{D0524754.D0OC/ 1 TN572-106}



EXHIBIT “C”

Charter of MDHA

{D0524754.D0C/ 1 TN572-106}



EXHIBIT “D”

Bylaws of MDHA

{D0524754.D0C / 1 TN572-106}



METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM
June 9, 2020
TO: Board of Commissioners
FROM: David Dellinger, Chief of Operations

SUBJECT: Trolley Barns Parking Garage Construction Manager GMP and Owner Contingency

Board approval is requested for the following items for the Trolley Barns Parking Garage Project and for
authorization for the Executive Director to sign all associated documentation on behalf of the agency:

1. Construction Manager's Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) of $12,380,088.00, including
$354,966.00 (3.0%) Owner-Controlled Contractor Contingency and $30,000.00 Pre-Construction
Fee;

2. Owner Contingency of $617,500 (5.0%);
3. Total Project Budget of $14,215,616.80:
4. Enter into a Construction Loan Agreement with Pinnacle Bank in the amount of $11,895,186.00.

The Trolley Barns Parking Garage will be located at 15 Lea Avenue in Rolling Mill Hill. The garage will be a
five () story, post tensioned concrete structure, containing 378 parking spaces with access from Lea
Avenue as well as Middleton Street via the access drive for the Ryman Lofts surface parking lot. The cost
of construction includes improvements to Lea Avenue and the Ryman Lofts surface parking lot access drive
to enhance traffic ingress and egress flow for the new parking garage.

At the November 12, 2019, meeting the Board approved MDHA to enter into negotiations with R. C.
Mathews Contractor, as Construction Manager at Risk. The Architect, Kline Swinney Associates,
Architects, provided R. C. Mathews Contractor with 85% Construction Documents for pricing. R. C.
Mathews Contractor has provided MDHA a Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal for $12,380,088.00
($32,750.00 per parking space) to construct the Trolley Barns Parking Garage. The GMP must be
accepted by July 19t, 2020. The date of Substantial Completion is scheduled for July 12th, 2021.

Funding for this project will come from three (3) sources. MDHA will contribute $2,000,000.00 of
unrestricted funds. An additional $320,431.00 will be contributed by TB Partners, LLC as part of the MOU
being drafted between MDHA and TB Partners, LLC for additional security enhancements they have
requested. These enhancements were not part of the original scope for this garage as defined in the
Rolling Mill Hill Master Plan Parking Agreement. The balance of the funding would be a construction loan
in the amount of $11,895,186.00.

David Dellinger



METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

June 9, 2020
TO: Board of Commissioners
FROM: David Dellinger, Chief of Operations
SUBJECT: Financing Resolution for Trolley Barns Garage

Board approval is requested for the approval of the Financing Resolution for the Trolley Barns
Parking Garage Project and for the authorization for the identified officers in the attached
resolution (Bill Purcell, the Chair, Emily Thaden, the Vice Chair for Housing, Aole Ansari, the
Vice Chair for Development, James E. Harbison, acting as either the Secretary-Treasurer or
Executive Director, and James L. Thiltgen, acting as Deputy Executive Director) to sign all
associated documentation on behalf of the agency. Pinnacle Bank has offered to provide
fourteen million five hundred dollars ($14,500,000) in construction financing for this project.
Per the current budget, the Agency expects to use $11,895,186 of the loan capacity. At the
completion of construction period not to exceed five additional months, per the Hensler Purchase
and Sale Agreement, the Agency will receive seventeen million dollars ($17,000,000) for the
purchase of Lot K of the Rolling Mill Hill development. These funds will be used to repay the
construction loan plus interest. Interest on the construction loan will be based on LIBOR plus
two and one-half percent (2.5%) with a floor of three and seventy-five percent (3.75%).

David Dellinger



RESOLUTION BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF METROPOLITAN
DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY

Effective Date: June 9, 2020

The undersigned, being a quorum of the Board of Commissioners of Metropolitan
Development and Housing Agency (‘MDHA”™), at a duly called meeting on June 9, 2020, acting
in accordance with the applicable provisions of the T.C.A. § 13-20-101, et. seq., and its Charter
and Bylaws, do hereby adopt the following resolutions to be effective as of the date hereof:

WHEREAS, MDHA owns certain property generally located on Rolling Mill Hill,
including Parcel H and Parcel K (together, the “Property”), which on a portion of Parcel H it
intends to construct a 375 space parking garage (the “Project”).

WHEREAS, Pinnacle Bank Bank (the “Lender”) is making a construction and permanent
loan to MDHA in the approximate maximum principal amount of Fourteen Million Five Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($14,500,000) in construction financing, or such other amounts as may be
appropriate at the discretion of the Authorized Representative (as defined below), to finance
construction and operation of the Project (collectively, the “Pinnacle Loan™) to be evidenced by a
Promissory Note in the amount of the Pinnacle Loan (the “Note;”)

WHEREAS, MDHA intends to pledge as collateral for the Pinnacle Loan its interests in
the Property, the Project , including its rights under that Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real
Estate dated January 30, 2017 between Rolling Mill Hill Partners, LLC as Buyer and MDHA as
Seller, as the same has been amended (the “Purchase Agreement”), to be evidenced by, among
other things, a deed of trust, assignment of leases, rents and profits, collateral assignments of
purchase agreement, and such other documents (the “Security Instruments;”) subject to existing
leases, purchase agreements, and other encumbrances ;

NOW BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED, that MDHA is hereby authorized and directed
to negotiate, execute, deliver, and perform the Note, Security Instruments, assignment of
construction documents, and any and all other documents, instruments, agreements, and
certifications required for MDHA to obtain the Pinnacle Loan from Lender (collectively, the “Loan
Documents™); and

FURTHER RESOLVED, that Bill Purcell, the Chair, Emily Thaden, the Vice Chair for
Housing, Aole Ansari, the Vice Chair for Development, James E. Harbison, acting as either the
Secretary-Treasurer or Executive Director, and James L. Thiltgen, acting as Deputy Executive
Director in the absence of the Executive Director, respectively, of MDHA (each, an “Authorized
Representative™), be, and each hereby are, or any one of them, acting along, be, and hereby is,
authorized and empowered, on behalf of MDHA, to execute and deliver the Loan Documents, and
all documents contemplated therein, and that any and all documents previously executed and
delivered by any such Authorized Representative with respect to the Project and Pinnacle Loan
are hereby ratified and approved; and




FURTHER RESOLVED, that any and all acts heretofore taken by any Authorized
Representative in connection with the matters authorized by the foregoing resolutions are hereby
ratified, confirmed, adopted and approved by the Board of Commissioners of MDHA.



CERTIFICATE

I, James E. Harbison, do hereby certify that I am the duly elected Secretary-Treasurer of
MDHA and the keeper of records of MDHA. These resolutions were duly adopted at the meeting
of the Board of Commissioners of MDHA, held in accordance with the Charter and Bylaws of
MDHA, at the office of MDHA at 701 South 6th Street, Nashville, Tennessee, on the day

of June, 2020.

By:

James E. Harbison
Secretary-Treasurer



METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AGENCY
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM
May 22, 2020
TO: Board of Commissioners
FROM: Emel Alexander, Director of Community Development
SUBJECT: Substantial Amendments to the 2019 Action Plan and the 2018-2023 Consolidated Plan for

Housing and Community Development for Nashville-Davidson County to allocate
CARES Act Funding

President Trump signed the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act, Public Law
116-136 on March 27", 2020. The Act identified additional funding for the Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG-CV) Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG-CV), and the Housing Opportunities for
Persons with AIDS (HOPWA-CV) programs to be used to respond to the Coronavirus outbreak. HUD’s
distribution plan for the additional funding includes multiple phases: an initial phase to allow for quick
access to funding to address the immediate crisis resulting from the rising pandemic, as well as later phases
that would support post-pandemic community recovery.

The Metropolitan Development and Housing Agency (MDHA) is designated as the lead agency for the
development and administration of the Consolidated Plan and its’ related programs, including funds
provided via the CARES Act. ~ Within MDHA, these functions are undertaken by the Community
Development Department.

To expedite access to these funds, HUD directed Grantees to prepare a substantial amendment to their latest,
approved action plan to allocate the CDBG-CV and HOPWA-CV funds to eligible activities/projects. This
Nashville-Davidson CARES Act substantial amendment 1 to the 2019-2020, Program Year (PY) 2, Action
Plan (AP) incorporates the funding being received in the initial CARES Act allocation, describes the
projects/activities for use of the funds, methods to distribute the funds, and serves as Metro Nashville’s
application to access the funds.

Additionally, it adds language to allow preference for housing rehabilitation programs to be provided to
LMI households whose homes were damaged from the March 3, 2020 tornados that hit Metro Nashville-
Davidson County and allow these programs to be used for reconstruction of properties determined not-
feasible for rehabilitation.

HUD guidance allowed grantees to amend their Consolidated Plan Citizen Participation requirements to
establish expedited procedures for amending consolidated plans in order to access the CDBG-CV and
HOPWA-CYV funds as quickly as possible.

To ensure the activities and use of CARES Act funds best align with the needs of the community,
considering funding constraints and resources anticipated to be available from other resources, MDHA
consulted with Metro Departments and various agencies in the community providing services to respond to
the Coronavirus to obtain input prior to preparing this substantial amendment.



To determine the best use of the CDBG-CV funds, MDHA worked with representatives from the Mayor’s
office and Metro Nashville’s Office of Emergency Management to determine local needs that were eligible
for funding and/or reimbursement from CDBG- CV funds that would not be funded from other resources
such as FEMA, TEMA, etc.  Additionally, MDHA sent out a survey to 826 stakeholders asking them to
rank by priority (0 being the lowest and 5 being the highest) potential uses of CDBG-VD funds for activities
within the following categories: public facilities and improvements; assistance to businesses; and public
services. MDHA consulted current HOPWA sponsors to determine priorities for the best use of the
HOPWA-CV funds for the activities that are included in this substantial amendment.

Upon notification of the ESG-CV allocation, MDHA reached out to local stakeholders, State, and Federal
offices, the Metropolitan Homeless Impact Division, the Continuum of Care (CoC), homeless shelters and
nonprofit agencies for consultation regarding the priority needs in the community to address COVID-19
issues. Additionally, MDHA surveyed CoC and ESG funded agencies to gauge community needs. As a
result of this community input, a list of priority needs was developed and verified for eligibility under ESG
activities. MDHA then used this priority list to create the list of anticipated eligible activities.

Additionally, comments on the draft substantial amendments to the Consolidated Plan and 2019 Action
Plan will be obtained during the public comment period (June 12 through June 19, 2020) and at a virtual
public hearing planned for June 12, 2020. Following the conclusion of the Public Comment Period, the
substantial amendments to the Consolidated Plan and 2019 Action 2020 Action Plan incorporating the
CARES Act funding will be presented to the Metropolitan Council for approval, prior to submittal to HUD.

Nashville — Davidson County received initial allocations 0f'$3,125,875 in CDBG-CV; $1,549,066 in ESG-
CV; and $225,186 in HOPWA-CV in funding through the CAREs Act legislation. HUD advised MDHA
to amend the 2019 Action Plan to incorporate eligible activities to use these funds to respond to the COVID-
19 outbreak.

Public Input

To determine the most appropriate use of funds based on local needs and funding guidelines, staff took the
following actions:

* CDBG-CV - Surveyed 826 stakeholders, requesting they prioritize potential uses of funds for
activities within the following categories: public facilities and improvements, assistance to
businesses, and public service. Consulted with Metro representatives to determine needs not
eligible for funding from other sources such as F EMA, TEMA, etc. This input was utilized to
determine that the best use of the CDBG-CV funding is to provide emergency housing assistance
for households suffering an income loss as the result of COVID-19.

* ESG-CV - Surveyed Continuum of Care (CoC) and ESG funded agencies to gauge needs.
Additionally, consulted the Metro Homeless Impact Division, CoC, homeless shelters and
nonprofit agencies serving the homeless population to regarding needs in the community to address
COVID-19 issues. This input was used to create the list of eligible activities specified in the tables
listed on the following pages for the use of these funds.

* HOPWA-CV - Consulted current HOPWA sponsors to determine priorities for the best use of the
HOPWA-CV funds to create list of eligible activities specified in the tables listed on the following
pages for the use of these funds.

Copies of the survey instruments and responses are included in Appendix A of the Action Plan Substantial
Amendment.



Recommended use of CARES Act funds

Specific allocations and activities for the use of the funds are detailed as follows:

Project Name

CDBG-CV_Public Services — Emergency Housing Assistance

Target Area Countywide

Goals Supported Disaster Mitigation and Recovery in Response to COVID-19

Needs Addressed COVID-19 Mitigation Preparation Opportunities

Funding $2,813.288

Description Assistance to households in danger of eviction or foreclosure because they have or
will fall behind in rent or mortgage payments because of loss of income due to
COVID-19.

Target Date March 2020 — May 2021

Estimate the number and | 2,000 70% LMI

type of families that will

benefit from the proposed

activities

Location Description Countywide

Planned Activities

Pay up to 3 months’ rent/mortgage payments for households with loss of income
due to COVID-19 and provide funds to assist with expenses associated with project
delivery. Program will be targeted to assist households that have either regained
sufficient income or anticipate regaining sufficient income through return to and/or
new employment to remain in their homes once payments are made. Payments will
be made directly to landlord/mortgage company. Program will be administered
via an agreement with multiple Sub recipients. The Sub recipients will be selected
through an RFA process.

Project Name

CDBG-CV - Administration & Planning

Target Area Countywide

Goals Supported Disaster Mitigation and Recovery in Response to COVID-19

Needs Addressed COVID-19 Specific Administration and Planning

Funding CDBG-CV: $312,587

Description Funding to be used for oversight and administration of CDBG-CV programs,
including monitoring, reporting, program evaluation, fair housing activities, and the
development of the Consolidated Plan and annual updates and amendments.
Planning includes studies, analysis, data gathering, and preparation of plans to help
prevent, prepare for and respond to the coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19)

Target Date 5/31/2022

Estimate the number | N/A

and type of families that

will benefit from the

proposed activities

Location Description Countywide

Planned Activities

Funds to be used by MDHA as the lead agency for the development and
administration of the Consolidated Plan programs specific to CDBG-CV
funds. Administrative activities include grant management, monitoring, budgeting,
and planning and executing CDBG-CV c¢ligible activities. MDHA may choose to
partner with another entity to undertake eligible planning activities.




Project Name

ESG-CV Programs and Services

Target Area Countywide

Goals Supported Disaster Mitigation and Recovery in Response to COVID-19

Needs Addressed COVID-19 Prevention Measure Opportunities

Funding ESG-CV: §$1,549,066.00 (includes up to $154,906 — for MDHA Administration)

Description Activities to support homeless persons - rapid re-housing and homeless
prevention assistance, shelter operations/essential services, and outreach;
program and HMIS administration to help prevent, prepare for, and respond to
the coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19)

Target Date 5/31/22

Estimate the number and
type of families that will
benefit from the proposed
activities

-Rapid Re-housing: 325 persons

-Homeless Prevention: 75 persons

-Shelter Operations/Essential Services: 2,000
-Outreach: 100 persons

Numbers are estimates. Due to the unknown nature of the COVID-19 impact,
these numbers could be much higher or lower dependent upon final activity
programs and outcomes.

Location Description

Countywide

Planned Activities

Funding for all activities, except Administration, will be awarded via the
following potential actions: a competitive Request for Applications process; a
direct application process, direct contracting to eligible nonprofit sub recipients,
and other methods allowed under the OMB 2 CFR 200 regulations.

Project Name

HOPWA-CV Housing and Supportive Services

Target Area Metropolitan Statistical Area

Goals Supported Disaster Mitigation and Recovery in Response to COVID-19

Needs Addressed COVID-19 Mitigation Preparation Opportunities

Funding HOPWA - $225,186

Description Housing; short-term rent, mortgage, and utility assistance (STRMU); supportive
services for persons with HIV/AIDS and their families; program administrative
costs incurred by MDHA and Sponsor agencies

Target Date June 2020 — May 2021

Estimate the number and
type of families that will
benefit from the proposed
activities

-Facility Based/Tenant Based Rental Assistance: 53 persons
-STRMU: 275 persons

-Supportive Services: 2,320 persons
-Short-Term/Emergency Assistance - 15 persons

Location Description

Persons with HIV/AIDS in the Nashville-Davidson— Murfreesboro-Franklin-
MSA

Planned Activities

Funding for all activities will be awarded via the following potential actions: a
competitive Request for Applications process; a direct application process, direct
contracting to eligible nonprofit sponsors, and other methods allowed under the
OMB 2 CFR 200 regulations.




In coordination with the Mayor’s office, MDHA has included language identifying subsequent rounds of
CDBG CARES funds to be allocated toward the lease, or acquisition and rehabilitation of a facility to allow
social distancing and isolation for the homeless, to prevent spread of COVID-19 virus among the homeless
population, to eliminate the strain on existing shelters and to provide associated homeless services.

Additional HUD guidance received via the CARES Act, allowed grantees to amend their Consolidated Plan
Citizen Participation requirements to establish expedited procedures for amending consolidated plans in
order to access the CARES Act funds as quickly as possible. Therefore, concurrent with the substantial
amendment to the 2019-2020 AP to allocate the CARES Act funds, MDHA prepared substantial
amendment 3 to amend the Citizen Participation Plan to include the five (5) day comment period. The
revised Citizen Participation Plan is included as Appendix D of substantial amendment 1 to the 2019 Action
Plan.

It is requested that the Board of Commissioners approve these substantial amendments to the 2019 Action
Plan and the 2018-2023 Consolidated Plan to allocate CARES Act Funds and allow an expedited public
comment period. These amendments will also be presented to the Metro Council for approval. Following
Metro Council approval, we will forward the required certifications to Mayor Cooper, and then submit the
documents to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development for review and approval.

174

(___EmellAlexander




“WHEREAS, The Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act Public Law
116-136 signed on March 27th, 2020 identified additional funding for the Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG-CV) Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG-CV), and the Housing
Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HOPWA-CV) programs to be used to respond to the
Coronavirus outbreak; and

WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Council designated the Metropolitan Development and Housing
Agency (“MDHA”) as the lead agency for the development and administration of the
Consolidated Plan and it’s related programs which includes the funds provided via the CARES
Act. Within MDHA, these functions are undertaken by the Community Development
Department; and

WHEREAS, On April 2, 2020, Mayor Cooper was notified via letters from John Gibbs, Acting
Assistant Secretary for Community Planning and Development of the U. S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development of the amounts of the initial allocations for the CDBG-CV;
ESG-CV; and HOPWA-CV CARES Act funds; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with HUD guidance, MDHA has prepared Substantial Amendment 3
to the 2018-2023 Consolidated Plan for Housing and Community for Nashville-Davidson
County and Substantial Amendment 1 to the 2019-2020 Action Plan to allow for an expedited
public comment period and to allocate the initial CARES Act funds to eligible activities to be
used to mitigate the impacts of the Coronavirus; and

WHEREAS, these Substantial Amendments have been prepared by MDHA in accordance with
CAREs Act regulations regarding citizen participation and in consultation with a variety of
public and private agencies and concerned individuals; and

WHEREAS, concurrent with the preparation of Substantial Amendment 1 to the 2019-2020
Annual Action Plan, MDHA has prepared for submittal to HUD Substantial Amendment 3 to the
2018-2023 Consolidated Plan for Housing and Community Development to amend Citizen
Participation requirements to establish expedited procedures to access the CARES Act funds as
quickly as possible to allow a five (5) day comment period. The revised Citizen Participation
Plan is included as Appendix D of substantial amendment 1 to the 2019 Action Plan; and

WHEREAS, the public comment period for Substantial Amendment 1 to the 2019-2020 and
Substantial Amendment 3 to the 2018-2023 Consolidated Plan began on May 26 and concluded
on June 2, 2020 and a virtual public hearing was held during the public comment period on May
27, 2020; and

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Metropolitan Development and
Housing Agency that it hereby approves Substantial Amendment 3 to the 2018-2023
Consolidated Plan and Substantial Amendment 1 to the 2019-2020 Annual Action Plan for
Housing and Community Development and authorizes its submission to the Metropolitan
Council and the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development; and



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the local match required for the Emergency Solutions
Grant-CV was waived per the CARES Act.



Executive Summary
ES-05 Executive Summary - 24 CFR 91.200(c), 91.220(b)
1. Introduction

The Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act Public Law 116-136 was
signed by President Trump on March 27", 2020. The Act identified additional funding for
the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG-CV) Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG-
CV), and the Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HOPWA-CV) programs to be
used to respond to the Coronavirus outbreak. HUD's distribution plan for the additional
funding includes multiple phases: an initial phase to allow for quick access to funding to
address the immediate crisis resulting from the rising pandemic, as well as later phases
that would support post-pandemic community recovery.

The Metropolitan Development and Housing Agency (MDHA) is designated as the lead
agency for the development and administration of the Consolidated Plan and its’ related
programs, including funds provided via the CARES Act. Within MDHA, these functions
are undertaken by the Community Development Department.

To expedite access to these funds, HUD directed Grantees to prepare a substantial
amendment to their latest, approved action plan to allocate the CDBG-CV and HOPWA.-
CV funds to eligible activities/projects. This Nashville-Davidson CARES Act substantial
amendment 1 to the 2019-2020, Program Year (PY) 2, Action Plan (AP) incorporates the
funding being received in the initial CARES Act allocation, describes the projects/activities
for use of the funds, methods to distribute the funds, and serves as Metro Nashville’s
application to access the funds.

Additionally, it adds language to allow preference for housing rehabilitation programs to
be provided to LMI households whose homes were damaged from the March 3, 2020
tornados that hit Metro Nashville-Davidson County and allow these programs to be used
for reconstruction of properties determined not-feasible for rehabilitation.

HUD guidance allowed grantees to amend their Consolidated Plan Citizen Participation
requirements to establish expedited procedures for amending consolidated plans in order
to access the CDBG-CV and HOPWA-CV funds as quickly as possible.

Therefore, concurrent with this Nashville-Davidson CARES Act substantial amendment 1
to the 2019-2020 AP, MDHA prepared substantial amendment 3 to the 2018-2023
Consolidated Plan which adds a 7th priority goal of Disaster Recovery to be used to track

h
Nashville-Davidson County CARES Act Substantial Amendment 1 —2019-20 Program Year 2 Action Plan ES1
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2019)




outcomes for activities related to of COVID-19 through the remaining time covered by the
Plan and to amend the Citizen Participation Plan to include the five (5) day comment
period as allowed by the CARES Act along with the other changes described and set forth
in substantial Amendment 2 to the 2018-2023 Consolidated Plan. The revised Citizen
Participation Plan is included as Appendix D of substantial amendment 1 to the 2019
Action Plan.

Per waivers received via the CARES Act, the ESG-CV funds are not subject to the
consultation and citizen participation requirements.  Thus, an Action Plan showing the
use of these funds can be reviewed via MDHA’s and Metro’s websites by accessing the
following links:

http://www.nashville-mdha.org/wp—content/upload§/2015/02/ESG-CV—action-pIan.pdf
https:;‘/www.nashville.guleews—Media/News-ArtIcfe/|D/9699/Emergency—Solutions-Grant—Action—

Plan.aspx
https://www.nashville.gov/Socia I-Services/Homeless-Impact-Division.aspx

https://www.homelessnashville.com/post/emergency-solutions-grant
https://www.homelessnashville.com/funding-info-for-providers

However, to ensure maximum transparency, the uses of the ESG-CV funds is also
included in this substantial amendment and will be sent via electronic media to all contacts
on the CoC's list serve.

Metro Nashville-Davidson County will receive the following amount from the initial CARES
Act allocations to prevent, prepare for and respond to the Coronavirus outbreak.

e $3,125,875 Community Development Block Grant Coronavirus (CDBG-CV) funds.
This initial allocation of CDBG-CV fund dollar will be used to provide up to three (3)
months of Emergency Housing Assistance for households in danger of eviction or
foreclosure because they have or will fall behind in rent or mortgage payments
because of loss of income due to COVID-19 and eligible administrative expense.
Any subsequent CDBG-CV allocations will be allocated toward the lease or
acquisition and retrofit of a facility to allow social distancing and isolation to prevent
spread of COVID-19 virus among the homeless population and eliminate the strain
on existing shelters and provide associated homeless services.

e $1,549,066 Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG-CV). These funds are to be used for
all eligible ESG-CV activities, and

e $225,186 Housing Opportunities for Person with HIV/Aids (HOPWA) in additional
funds to enable Metro Nashville-Davidson County. These funds are to be used for
all eligible HOPWA activities.

e R R R
e "~ ]

Nashville-Davidson County CARES Act Substantial Amendment 1 - 2019-20 Program Year 2 Action Plan ES2
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2019)



2. Summary of the objectives and outcomes identified in the Plan

As part of substantial amendment 3 to the 2018-2023 Consolidated Plan, MDHA is
proposing to add a 7th priority goal of the Strategic Plan of Disaster Mitigation/Recovery
in response to COVID-19 to be used to track outcomes for activities related to of COVID-
19, as needed, through the remaining time covered by the plan.

The priority goal of Disaster/Mitigation/Recovery in response to COVID-19 includes the
following priority needs listed below for the COVID-19 response and implementation.
Subsequent detailed projects and activities funded via the CARES Act were established
based on input from community stakeholders and are shown in the AP20, AP35 and
AP38 sections of the substantial amendment.

» COVID-19 Prevention Measure Opportunities
« COVID-19 Mitigation Preparation Opportunities
* COVID-19 Mitigation Response Opportunities
» COVID-19 Specific Administration and Planning

Specific objectives related to each COVID-19 goal are discussed in Section AP 20 of
this substantial amendment.

3. Summary of citizen participation process and consultation process

To ensure the activities and use of CARES Act funds best align with the needs of the
community, considering funding constraints and resources anticipated to be available
from other resources, MDHA consulted with Metro Departments and various agencies in
the community providing services to respond to the Coronavirus to obtain input prior to
preparing this substantial amendment.

To determine the best use of the CDBG-CV funds, MDHA worked with representatives
from the Mayor’s office and Metro Nashville's Office of Emergency Management to
determine local needs that were eligible for funding and/or reimbursement from CDBG-
CV funds that would not be funded from other resources such as FEMA, TEMA, etc.
Additionally, MDHA sent out a survey to 826 stakeholders asking them to rank by priority
(0 being the lowest and 5 being the highest) potential uses of CDBG-VD funds for
activities within the following categories: public facilities and improvements; assistance
to businesses; and public services. This survey produced 74 responses that MDHA then
used to determine the activities to be funded with the CDBG-CV funds. A copy of the
survey and responses are included in Appendix A of this substantial amendment.

“
Nashville-Davidson County CARES Act Substantial Amendment 1 —2019-20 Program Year 2 Action Plan ES3
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2019)




MDHA consulted current HOPWA sponsors to determine priorities for the best use of the
HOPWA-CV funds for the activities that are included in this substantial amendment.

Upon notification of the ESG-CV allocation, MDHA reached out to local stakeholders,
State, and Federal offices, the Metropolitan Homeless Impact Division, the Continuum of
Care (CoC), homeless shelters and nonprofit agencies for consultation regarding the
priority needs in the community to address COVID-19 issues. Additionally, MDHA
surveyed CoC and ESG funded agencies to gauge community needs.  As a result of
this community input, a list of priority needs was developed and verified for eligibility under
ESG activities. MDHA then used this priority list to create the list of anticipated eligible
activities. The list of needs and stakeholder responses can be found in Appendix A of
this substantial amendment

Additionally, comments on the draft substantial amendments to the Consolidated Plan
and 2019 Action Plan were obtained during the public comment period (June 12 through
June 19, 2020) and at the virtual public hearing that was held on June 12, 2020. Details
about the public hearing are provided in the Public Notice provided in Appendix B of this
substantial amendment.

Information on how persons with disabilities or sensory impairments or those in need of
translation services can request accommodation is provided in all Public Notices, in
emails advertising community meetings/public input sessions, and posted on the
Consolidated Plan webpage in Spanish, Chinese, Vietnamese, Arabic, and Somali.
MDHA will make every effort to accommodate reasonable requests.

Following the conclusion of the Public Comment Period, the substantial amendments to
the Consolidated Plan and 2019 Action 2020 Action Plan incorporating the CARES Act
funding will be presented to the MDHA Board of Commissioners and the Metropolitan
Council for approval, prior to submittal to HUD.

4. Summary of public comments

A summary of comments received from stakeholders during the consultation process is
provided in Appendix A.

A summary of public comments on the draft substantial amendments to the Consolidated
Plan and the 2019 Action Plan received at the virtual public hearing held on June 12,
2020 is provided in Appendix C.

W

Nashville-Davidson County CARES Act Substantial Amendment 1 — 2019-20 Program Year 2 Action Plan ES4
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2019)




5. Summary of comments or views not accepted and the reasons for not
accepting them

A summary of public comments or views received during the public hearing that were not
accepted and the reasons for not accepting them is included in summary of public
comments (Appendix C).

6. Summary

The Coronavirus Pandemic has wreaked havoc on residents of Metro Nashville-
Davidson County with the following statistics reported as of June 1, 2020:

e Metro Public Health Department (MPHD) officials announced a total number of
5517 confirmed cases of coronavirus disease (COVID-19) in Nashville/Davidson
County., an increase of 132 in the past 24 hours. The confirmed cases range in
age from 1 month to 100 years.

e A total of 63 people have died after a confirmed case of COVID-19.
e 4 165 individuals have recovered from the virus.

The economic toll for Metro Nashville-Davidson County is yet to be quantified, with the
loss of revenue from shuttered businesses, not to mention lost revenue from cancelled
events such as the South Eastern Conference (SEC) Basketball Tournament, concerts,
etc. All of these closings and cancelations have resulted in lost wages to income earners
in all categories, however, those in the restaurant and hospitality service industry have
been hit particularly hard.

PR-05 Lead & Responsible Agencies 24 CFR 91.200(b)

1. Describe agency/entity responsible for preparing the Consolidated Plan and
those responsible for administration of each grant program and funding
source

MDHA is responsible for preparing the Consolidated Plan and amendments thereto and
the administration of each grant program and funding source, including the funding
provided via the CARES Act.

Agency Role Name Department/Agency
CDBG-CV NASHVILLE-DAVIDSON MDHA Community
Administrator Development Department

_— e ——————
Nashville-Davidson County CARES Act Substantial Amendment 1 — 2019-20 Program Year 2 Action Plan ESS
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2019)



‘ﬁOPWA-CV ~ | NASHVILLE-DAVIDSON MDHA Community
Administrator Development Department

ESG-CV Administrator | NASHVILLE-DAVIDSON MDHA Community
Development Department

Table 1 — Responsible Agencies

Narrative

By Resolution R94-1326, the Metropolitan Council designated MDHA as the lead agency
responsible for the development and administration of the Consolidated Plan and its
related grant programs. These functions are undertaken by MDHA’s Community
Development Department.

Consolidated Plan Public Contact Information

Emel Alexander, Director of Community Development
Metropolitan Development and Housing Agency

712 South 6t Street

Nashville, Tennessee 37206

(Phone) 615-252-8507

(Fax) 615-252-8533

(Email) ealexander@nashville-mdha.org

Treva Gilligan, Assistant Director of Community Development
712 South 6t Street

Nashville, Tennessee 37206

(Phone) 615-252-6732

(Fax) 615-252-8533

(Email) tagilligan@nashville-mdha.org

For comments and general inquiries:
consolidatedplan@nashville-mdha.org

%
Nashville-Davidson County CARES Act Substantial Amendment 1 —2019-20 Program Year 2 Action Plan ES6
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2019)




PR-10 Consultation - 91.100, 91.200(b), 91.215(1)
1. Introduction

See number 1. In the ES-05, Executive Summary section of this substantial amendment
1 to the 2019-2020 AP.

PR-15 Citizen Participation

1. Summary of citizen participation process/Efforts made to broaden citizen
participation

Summarize citizen participation process and how it impacted goal-setting

Based on HUD guidance, MDHA concurrent with this Nashville-Davidson CARES Act
substantial amendment 1 to the 2019-2020 AP, proposes to amend the Consolidated
Plan Citizen Participation requirements to allow for expedited procedures in order to
access CDBG-CV and HOPWA-CV funds as quickly as possible.

Thus, MDHA prepared substantial amendment 3 to the 2018-2023 Consolidated Plan.
MDHA is proposing to add the 7th priority goal of Disaster Mitigation/Recovery in
response to COVID-19 to the Consolidated Plan to be used to track outcomes for
activities related to of COVID-19 throughout the remaining time covered by the Plan
and is proposing an amendment to the Citizen Participation Plan to include a five (5)
day comment period as allowed by the CARES Act along with the other changes
previously described and set forth in substantial amendment 2 to the 2018-2023
Consolidated Plan (substantial amendment 2 was available for public comment from
March 10 — April 10, 2020). The proposed revised Citizen Participation Plan is included
as Appendix D of this Nashville-Davidson CARES Act substantial amendment 1 to the
2019 Action Plan.

The Public Notice was advertised in The Tennessean, The Tribune, and El Crucero (a
Spanish newspaper). In addition, the Notice was posted at MDHA’s website
(www.nashville-mdha.org). A copy of the notice is provided in Appendix B. The Notice
was widely distributed via email to over 800 partners, government officials, nonprofit
organizations, businesses, neighborhood groups, and citizens, whose email addresses
have been provided to MDHA, and was sent to the Mayor’s Office, and Members of the
Metro Council. The public comment period, public hearing and reminders were
publicized via MDHA'’s social media outlets. The public comment period opened on

“
Nashville-Davidson County CARES Act Substantial Amendment 1 —2019-20 Program Year 2 Action Plan ES7

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2019)




June 12 and ran through June 19, 2020. A virtual public hearing was held on June 12,
2020.

Comments on the draft substantial amendments to the Consolidated Plan and 2019
Action Plan obtained during the public comment period are provided in Appendix C.

Reasonable Accommodation

Information on how persons with disabilities or sensory impairments or in need of
translation services could request accommodation was provided in the Public Notice and
posted on the Consolidated Plan webpage in Spanish, Chinese, Vietnamese, Arabic, and
Somali. MDHA will make every effort to accommodate reasonable requests.

W

Nashville-Davidson County CARES Act Substantial Amendment 1 — 2019-20 Program Year 2 Action Plan ES8
OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2019)



(6102/0£/90 dx3) £TT0-9052 :ON |043U0D GINO
653 Ue|d UONDY  JedA wetdoid 0Z-6T0Z — T UBWPUIWY [BI1UBISGNS 13V STHVYD AUNOD uospiAeg-a||IAYSEN
ﬂ

yseannQ uonedionued uazyid - ¥ a|qe L

0 0 0
Aunwwod 0zoz ‘gl sunr
xipuaddy 885 | xipuaddy sag | xipusddy 83g | peolqg/palebiel-uoN | BuuesH olang [enuIA 6
v v v
Alunwwoo sAaning Ajunwwon
xipuaddy 835 | xipuaddy 23S | xipueddy sog | peoiqg/palebie)-uoN lBw3 Layio 8
Ajunwwo) (elpa e100g)
V/N V/IN V/N peo.q/pajabie)l-uoN yseannQ suisiy| )
Aunwwod (SUsgaM YHQIN)
BI0BUpW-3[IALSEU MMM V/N V/N V/N peolq/pajebiel-uoN yoeaJnQ jauJau| ¥
(usiuedg) Buiyeadg (o10n1D
VIN VIN VIN ysi|bug-uoN 13) pv JadedsmaN €
(dunqu
V/N V/IN V/IN SanUOUIlN | 3y]l) py JoadedsmaN 4
Alunwwon (ueassauua |,
V/IN VIN V/N peoiq/psjablel-uoN | ayl) py Jadedsmen L
suoseal
pue pajdaocoe paAiaoal s aduepuspe
Jou SsjuUBWILWOD JuswiwoD Jasuodsal Japlo
(e|qeoidde 4|) 14N jo Alewwng Jo Alewwing JjoAlewwng | yoeannQ jolebie) yoealinQ Jo apon Hos

yseannQ uonedionied uazijin

'3]qe | Buimo||o) 8y} ul paziewwns a1e SHOYS Yoealno asay) jo synsa. ay |




(6102/0€/90) £ZTT0-90SZ "ON 1043U0D GINO
I-dv ue|d UOIPY g JedA WeuSold 0Z0Z-6T0Z — T IUSWPUSWY [BIIUBISGNS 19V SIYYD UOSPIARQ-3|[IAYSEN
ﬂ

S82IA3S 2l|gnd

sjuawanosdw|

alignd

o o BuisnoH

uoneso|e AD 0 G/8'Gel €% 0 0 G/8'Gcl €% Juswdojaraq

-©4d9 0¢0¢ dlwouody
-Z-¥ Uo paseq Buluue|d | |esopsy AD
Junowy pue ulwpy | -dignd | -5gQa0

$

ue|quod
Jo
Japuleway $ $ $

a|qe|leAy $ :$824N0S3Y dDWODU| :(UOI}BIO||Y spun4
uonduasag junowyy jejo]. deap 1old weabouad lenuuy JO
9ANnelIeN pajoadxgy € 1ea\ a|gejieAy junowy pajaadxy spungd jo sesn 92i1nog weuaboud
$921nosay pajedidonuy

'Suoljedo|le oY SFHVYD 10} 0 Je pajewnss si (|d) swoou| weibold HgQD)  SUOHEJO||E |BllIUl 8SBY) UO
paseq aie mojaq 9|qe} sy} Ul pajsi| sjunowe ay| “0Z0g ‘g udy UO Sjunowe uoiedo|ie Py STV [BNIUI 8y} pases|al dNH

uononpoJuj
(Z°1L)(2)02Z’ L6 — s@2inosay pajoadx3] GL-dV

$921n0S8y pajoadx]



(6T0Z/0€/90) £IT0-905Z 'ON [043U0) §NO
¢-dv Ue[d UONDY 7 Jesp wes3oud 020Z-6T07 — T UaWpuswy [BIIUBISONS 10V SIYVD UOSPIARQ-3||IAYSEN

ﬂ

SO2INISS
aAlpoddng
NNYLS
sailjioey
Buisnoy
|leuoljisuel)
0 98l'Gezs 0. 0 98l'Gees 10 Wis] Hoyg
Juswaoe|d
‘uoijeso|e Buisnoy

NO-VMdOH Jusuewlad
0co¢ saij|1oe}

-Z-% Uo paseq ui buisnoy | |eispay AD
Jnowyy Jusuewsd | -olqgnd | -YAAdOH

$

uejquo)
jJo
19puleway $ $ $

ajqgejieAy $ S92IN0SdY :3WO0dU| :UOREBIO||Y spung
uonduosag  junowy lejog lea) Jold weiboird  jenuuy jo
aAneLIeN pajoadxg € Jea ) 3|ge[ieAy Junowy pajsadxg spung jo sas) e@2inog weiboiy



(6T02/0€/90) £TT0-90SC "ON |043U0D GINO
£€-dv ue|d UONDV 7 JeaA weidoud 0Z0Z-6T0T — T JUSWPUIWY [BIIUEISGNS 19V STHYD UOSPIABQ-D||IAYSEN
ﬁ

a|qe] Ajioud — sa21nosay pajoadx] - 96 a|qe]

Buisnoy
|euolyisuel |
SEBIVETS
uonuanalid
SSOUSSI|aWOoH
aouejsissy
[ejuay
(soueysisse
|ejual) Buisnoy
-a1 pidey
"uoneooje AD Jayays
-9S3 0202 ybiuseno
-Z-% Uo paseq aoue)sIssy | |elopay
junouwy |eoueuld | -olgqnd | AD-9ST

$

ue|quo)

}Jo

lapuleway $ $ $

0 990'6¥5'L$ 0 0 990'6%5'L$

alqgejleAy $ 1S921N0S3Y :dDWOOU| :uonedo||y spuny
uonduosaq junowy :jeio] Jes) Jolld weiboug lenuuy jo
9ANnelIeN pajoadxgy € 1ed ) 9|ge|leAy junowy pajoadxy spung jo sesn ©9%4nog weiboud



(6T02/0€/90) L110-90SZ "ON |011U03 GINO

r-dv UB|d UONDY Z 434 Wieidold 0Z0Z-6T0Z ~ T JUSWPUIWY [eNURISGNS 19V SIYYD UOSPIARG-D||IAYSEN
ﬂ
(61

-AIAOD) SNJIABUOIOD BU} JO }JINS3) B SE Ue|d Pajepl|osuo) ayj 0} pappe Ajuoud mau e si siy] Ajuold annejay Joj siseg
"SUI30U0D

Sy} SSalppe O} Ue|d UOIdY 610 PUB Ue|d pa)epl|osuo) 8y} 0} pappe uasq aAey sjeob pue paau Ajsoud |euoinippe

PV STHYD 8Y} JO UOKIPUOD B SE YEaIGIN0 SNIIABUOIOD) SU) 0} puodsai pue Joj aledaid ‘Juanaid 0} Japlo uj uonduoasag
61-AINOD 0} esuodsal ul Asonooay/uonebiip is)sesi s|eo9) pajelsossy

SpIMAJUNOD pajoayy seasy d1ydesboan

SuoIppY Jaylo

10 |OYod)Y UM suosiad ‘sailjigesiq [ejuawdojanag ylim suosiad ‘ssiijigesiq |edisAyd yum suosiad ‘saiijigesig |elusiy
Yum suosiad ‘Auap|] |iel4 ‘Aep|3 ‘suelsiap ‘asnqy aouesqng aiuoiy ‘||| Ajleiusy ‘UBIp|IYD yim saijiwe ‘sjenpiaipu|
SSBUSS8|aWOH dluoiIyD ‘Auap|3 ‘uaipiiyd yum saljiwe ‘saijiwe abie ‘SleJopol ‘MO ‘MO Ajowaix3 -uojejndoyd
ybiH - jaAeT Aioud

seniunpoddQ uonesedald uoleb 61-QINQD dweN paan Ajuoud ||

(61

-dINOQD) SNIIABUOIOY 8U} JO NSl B SE Ue|d Pajepljosuo) auyj 0} pappe Ajuoud mau e si siy)| AJlIoLd dARE[SY 1O} siseg
"SUJBOU0D

OU} SS8Jppe 0] Ue|d UOHOY 610 PUE UB|d Palepljosuoy ay} 0) pappe useq aAey sjeob pue pesu Ajuoud jeuonippe

PV STYVO 9Y} JO UOIIPUOD B SE YEIGINO SNIIABUOIOD) 3y} O} puodsal pue 1o} eredaid ‘yusnaid o) Japio uj uonduasaq
61-QINOD 0} 8suodsai ui Aioncoay/uonebipy Jsjsesiq sjeos) pajeisossy

apimAluno) pajosyy seasy siydesboan

SuolRIPpY 18yl

10 |0YO9Y yum suosiad ‘saniiqesiq [ejuswidojaasq Yim suosiad ‘saiigesiq [eoISAud Yim suosiad ‘sanijigesiq |ejusiy
Yim suosiad ‘Auap|3 l1elq ‘Aliep|3 ‘sueialap ‘esnqy Sduelsqng dluoIyQ ‘|| Ajjejusiy ‘usipiiyd yum sayjiwe ‘S|lenpiAipuy|
SS3USSSIBWOH d1uoiy) ‘Alap|3 ‘UaIpiyD yim saijiwe ‘saljiwe ableT ‘ajelspojy ‘Mo ‘moT Ajewenx3 -uonejndoy
UBIH - 19Ae7 Ajiong

sejluNuoddQ ainses|y uonuaaid 6L-AIAOD dWEN paspN Auoud 01

Alewwng spasN Ajlioug
— 06§ 81qe | spasN Ajuoud

(g)e)5Lz 16 - spo9aN Aloiid §Z-dS



(6102/0€/90) L1T0-90S2 "ON 10130 §NO
S-dVv UE|d UOIIDY ¢ Jeaj weldold 0Z0Z-6T0Z — T IUBWPUIWY [BIIURISANS 10V STHYD uosplAeQg-sif[iayseN

e e ————————
Uejd palepljosuo) £202-810Z @U} JO [eob Jeak anl [euolippe Ue se pappe usoq sey ojqe} Buimoljoj ay) Ui pasl| / [B09)

(P)(e)G1Z 16 — Aewwung sjeoo GH-ds

(61

-AINOQD) SNJIABUOIOD 8Y} JO JNSaI B SE Ue|d pajepl|osuo) ay} o} pappe Ajuoud mau e s siy| Ajiolid 9AnE|9Y 10j siseq
"SUJ9OU0D

BY} ssalppe 0} Ue|d UoldY 61 0¢ pue uejd pajepl|osuo) ay} 0} pappe useq aAey sjeob pue paau Ajioud [euolippe

1OV STHVD 3y} JO UOHIPUOD B SE }eaigino SNIIABU0IOD 8y} 0} puodsal pue Joy atedaid ‘Jusnsid 0y Joplo U] uonduossag
61-AINOD 0} @suodsal uI Aianocoay/uonebijipy Jaisesiq S|eos) pajeIdossy

apimAlUnoy paloayy sealy diydelboan)

SuoRDIPPY 13410

10 |0Yo2|Y yum suosiad ‘saliiqesi( [ejuswidojaaaq Yim suosiad ‘saiyigesiq |edisAld Yum suosiad ‘sajigesiq [ejusyy
Uim suosiad ‘Auep|3 jleiq ‘Alisp|3 ‘suelsia ‘@snqy aoueisqng a1uoiy) i Alleluapy ‘uaipiiyDd yum saljiwie ‘sjenpiaipu]
SSaussS|aWOoH diuoly) ‘Aap(3 ‘ualp|iy) yum saljiwe ‘saljiwe abieq ‘ajeispopy ‘Mo ‘moT Ajswalxg -uoiejndod
UbIH - 19Ae7 Auond

Buluuely pue uonessiuiLpy oyRads 61-AINOD dWeN pasaN Auuold €|

(61

-QIAOQ) SNJIABUOIOD BY} JO }NSal B SE UB|d Pajepl|osuo?) ay) o} peppe Ajuoud mau E si siyl Ajuolig aAne|ay 1o} siseg
"'SUlaouo9

8y} Ssalppe O} Ue|d UoldY 610 PuUe ue|d pajeplosuo) ay} o} pappe uaaq aAey s|eob pue pasu Ajuoud jeuonippe

PV STHVYD S} JO UOIIPUOS B SE YEeaIgino SNIIABUOIOY) 8y} 0] puodsal pue lo} asedaud yuanaid 0y Japio uj uonduasaqg
61-AINOD 0} 8suodsai ul A1ancoay/uonebniy JoIsesiq S|eos) pajeIdsossy

apimAluno) pajoayy sealy diydelboan)

SucnOIPpPY J8Yy10

10 |0Yoo|y yim suosiad ‘sanijigesiq |ejuswdojanaq Yum suosiad ‘saljijigesiq [edIsAuyd YIMm suosiad ‘saljljigesiq jejusy
Yum suosiad ‘Auap|3 1es4 ‘Alusp|3 ‘suelalep ‘esnqy aduelsqng d1uoyQ ‘||| Ajlelusy ‘usipliyD yum saljiwie ‘sjenpiAipu|
SSOUSSa[aWOH dluolyD ‘Apsp|3 ‘ualpiiyD yum saijjwe ‘saljiwe sbie ‘9)eJapo ‘Mo ‘Mo Ajowalix3 -uonendod
UbIH - |oAe7 Qjuoud

saunuoddQ ssuodsay uonebiy 61-QINOD sweN pasN Aiuold Zi



{6T0Z/0€/90) LTT0-905¢C "ON 1013U0D 9INO
9-dv Ue|d UOIIY Z JedA wieuS0.ld 0Z0Z-6T0Z — T JUdWPUSWY [e1IURISqNS 19 STHVD UOSPIARQ-3||IAYSEN
%



(6T02/0€/90) £T10-90SZ "ON |043U0) GINO
L-dV Ue|d UOIIIY T JB3A WeuB0ud 0Z0Z-6T0Z — T JUSWPUSWY [BIURISANS 19V STHYD UOSPIARG-3]|IAYSEN
ﬁ

103jeoa1pu| passalppy ealy ieajp Jed\

awoo)nQ |eon Buipung SpasaN o1ydesboan Aiobajen pug pe)s aWEN |eoo)



(6T0Z/0€/90) £T10-905C ON [043U0D GINO
8-dV ue|d UOIIY 7 Jedj weidold 0Z0Z-610Z — T JUswpuswy [e1IUBISONS 10V SIYYD UOSPIABQ-D||IAYSEN

e —————

jun buisnoH
ployssnoH g9¢
suonesadQ
Bursnop
SAIV/IAIH

pajsissy

suosiad G/¢€
:uonuanald

SSOUSSa|aWOoH saniunuoddo
asuodsoy
pajsissy uonebmp
suosiad 00001 61-AINOD
-19)]/ys
wbiuenp saiyunpoddQ
uosIad SS9|8WOoH uoijesedaid
uonebiipy SpasN |e1oads
pajsissy 61-AINOD SS9[BWOoH
SployasnoH GZ9l | 091 '¥6E°LS -UON
:Buisnoyay | :AD-9S3 saniunuoddQ | ealy |eonsnels SAIv/AIH 61-AINOD
pidey / ainsea| ueyjodosis|y |  ypm suosiad 0} asuodsai ul
aouejsisse |ejual | 981°6zz$ uoljuanald pue ss9|aWoH Aonooayuoiebinp
paseqg-jueus] | \AD-VMdOH 61-AINOD apimAlunog loj poddng | €20z | 0202 Jajsesi(
saljjunpoddQ
asuodsay
.8G°CLeS uonebi Buiuueid
V/N | -:AD-94900D 61-QINOD uonelsiuiwpy
saunpoddo 6L-AINOD
INT asuodsay 0} asuodsal ul
%0/, — pajsisse | /8Z'c18C$ uonebin S3JIAIBG Aianodey/uonebiypy
SPIOY3sSNOH 000¢ | :AD-99d9 61-AINOD apmAunon allgnd | €20¢ | 0202 iaisesig




(6T02/0€/90) £L110-90SZ "ON [043u0D HINO
6-dV Ue|d UOIDY T Je3A WeuBoud 0Z0Z-6T0Z — T JUSWPUSWY [B1IUBISANS 19V STYVD UOSPIARC-3||IAYSEN
ﬁ

BYIO LIYEL
SCTh o)

lo}eoipuj passalppy ealy lea)\ Jea\
awo9nQ |eos) Buipuny spaoN aiydesBboar) KioBajen puz ue)s awieN |eon




(6T0Z/0E/90) LTT0-90SZ "ON [043U0D GNO
ue|d UOIY 7 JedA wesd0id 0Z0Z-6T07 — T JUSWpUawy [BIIUBISNS 10V SIUVD UOSPIARQ-3||IAYSEN

0T-dv
j

saunpoddo
asuodsay
uonebii
61-AINOD

saniunuoddQ
uoneledald
uoneb
61-AINOD

saijlunpoddp 61L-AINOD
alnsea 0] asuodsai ul

906'vS1$ uonuanaid Aianooay/uonebiyipy
VIN | :AD-983 6L-QIAOD apmAunog | uonensiuwpy | €20z | 020z Jsjsesig

BYlo L/vEL

ETN g _
10jeaipu| | passaippy ealy ieaj) Jea\

awo9InQ |eon) Buipung spooN orydesboan) AioBajen pug uelg oswepN |eoq




(6T02/0€/90) ZTT0-90SZ "ON [043uCD §NO

T1-dv UB|d UOIJY 7 JEA WeJB0.d 0Z0Z-6TOZ — T JUSWPUBWY [BRUEISGNS 1DV SIHYD UOSPIARQ-D||IAYSEN
e ———— e ——————— —— —————————————
uosiad
SSO|SWOoH
saunpoddo
pajsissy uoneledald
SployssnoH | 091 '¥6€°1L$ uonebyy
GZe | ‘ANO-9S3 61-dINOD
‘Buisnoyay ealy

pidey | 981°GZZ$ sajiunyoddo [eonsiels | spas\ [eroads 61-AINOD

/ dduejsisse | 'WAMJOH ainsea|y uepjodos}apy | SSS[OWOH-UON 0} asuodsal ul

|eyusal uoljuanald Aisnooayuonebiup

paseqg-jueus | 61-AINOD apimAjunod SS9I8WOH | L¢0Z | 0202 lajsesi(

Bujuueld 61-AINOD

/8G'ZLES uoljelisiuiupy 0} asuodsal ul

oyadg Buiuuely Aanooay uonebiip

V/N | ‘AD-98d0 61-AINOD spimAjunod | uolessIuIWPY | LZ0Z | 0202 Jaisesi(

INT %02 saiiunpoddo 6L-AINOD

— pajsisse | /8Z'¢18°Z$ asuodsay 0} asuodsai ul

Sp|OYyasSnoH uonebiyiy Aianoossyjuonebinipy

0002Z | - AD-949AdD 61-dINOD apimAlunoy | saoinBg 21jgnd Jajsesig

Jolealpu|
awo93nQ passalppy ealy Jea)

|eoo Buipuny SpasN oiydeisboan Aiobajen pug aweN |eon
uoneuwuoju| Alewwng sjeos

saARoalqO pue s[eo |enuuy 0z-dv

saAR29lqQ pue sjeos jenuuy



(6T0Z/0€/90) £TT0O-90ST "ON [043U0D GINIO
Z1-dv Ue|d UONJY T 434 WeJdold 0Z0Z-6T0Z — T JUSWPUIWY [BIURISGNS 10V STYVD UOSPIARG-3|JIAYSEN

gi

Alewwing sjeoo — ;6 ajqe)

uonesiuiwpy

olyioadg

906151 $ 61L-AINOD

V/N | ‘AD-9S3 spmAlunog | uonensiuIWPY | 1.Z0Z | 0202

G¥8¢ 13410
Hun Buisnoy
ployssnoH g9
:aoue)sIssy
BuisnoH
SAIV/INIH
pajsissy
sSuoslIad G/
uonuanald s
S9USSI|oWOoH

pajsissy saijlunuoddp

SuosJag asuodsay

000¢ J8y3ys uonebim

V[SIVIET o) 61-QINOD

10}eolpuj
awoanQ passalppy ealy Jea) Jedaj

jeon) Buipung SpoaN o1ydesboan A1obayen pug nuelg SweN |eon



(6T02/0€/90) LTTO-90ST ‘ON |0413U0D GNO
€T-dV Ue|d UOIIY  Je3\ Wetdoid 0Z0Z-6T0C — T JUSWPUSWY [BIIUBLSANS 10V STYYD UOSPIARQ-3{[IAYSEN

_ Y s L - = —  — =

uonewuoju| 398foid - 86 ajqe

S90IM8S pue swelbold — AD-9ST

S90IAIG pue sweiboldq BuisnoH - AD-YAMJOH

aoue)sissy BuisnoH Aouabiawg — sa01AI9G 21Iqnd — AD-9900

Buluue|d g uonensiUIWPY - AD-D9AD
awep jo0lougd

sjooloiyd

"UOI}ONIISUOD3I PUB SWIIOIA OPBUIO) 0Z0Z ‘S YoIe
10} 8ouaiaja.d Joj Mojje 0} J03[014 uoHe}IqeYSY JSUMOSWOH 610Z Y} 1o} UondLoSap papuse pue SUONEdO|e 0Z0Z
Buiziin AD-VMJOH Pue AD-9S3 ‘AD-9900 1V STHYD Yim uasepapun aq o} sjosfoid pasodoid aie Bumoljo) sy |

uononpoJuj

(P)ozZ L6 — syoofoud Ge-dV
sjooafoiag



(6T02/0€/90) L1T0-90SZ "ON J0su0D anNo
0Z — T JUSWPUAWY [BIAURISGNS 10Y SIYVYD UOSPIABQ-3||IAYSEN

VT-dv Ue|d UOIY ¢ Jesj weudoid 020Z-6T
ﬂ

"BAIjO8Ys pue 8|qises; 8 0} uolejuswa|dwi Joy
paubisap ase Aay} ‘indul oijgnd ybnouyy PaLIUSPI SB Spasu paAlasiopun ssaippe 0} papusjui sanuoud Buipuny ase Ajuo JoN

Indur Aunwiwod Jsye paysiiqeIss s1em spuny 1oy SIMVD 10} saioud Buipun 4

Spasu pansasispun Buissaippe o) sajoejsqo Aue pue sapiioud uonesoje 10} suoseas ay} aquasaq



AP-38 Project Summary

Project Summary Information

Project Name CDBG-CV - Administration & Planning

Target Area Countywide

Goals Supported Disaster Mitigation and Recovery in Response to
COVID-19

Needs Addressed COVID-19 Specific Administration and Planning

Funding CDBG-CV: $312,587

Description Funding to be used for oversight and administration of

CDBG-CV programs, including monitoring, reporting,
program evaluation, fair housing activities, and the
development of the Consolidated Plan and annual
updates and amendments. Planning includes studies,
analysis, data gathering, and preparation of plans to
help prevent, prepare for and respond to the coronavirus
pandemic (COVID-19)

Target Date 5/31/2022

Estimate the number | N/A

and type of families
that will benefit from
the proposed
activities

Location Description | Countywide

Planned Activities Funds to be used by MDHA as the lead agency for the
development and administration of the Consolidated
Plan programs specific to CDBG-CV

funds. Administrative activities include grant
management, monitoring, budgeting, and planning and
executing CDBG-CV eligible activities. MDHA may
choose to partner with another entity to undertake
eligible planning activities.

Project Name CDBG-CV Public Services — Emergency Housing
Assistance

Target Area Countywide

Goals Supported Disaster Mitigation and Recovery in Response to
COVID-19

Needs Addressed COVID-19 Mitigation Response Opportunities

Nashville-Davidson CARES Act Substantial Amendment 1 — 2019-2020 Program Year 2 Action Plan AP-15
OMB Control No. 2506-0117 (06/30/2019)



Funding $2,813,287

Description Assistance to households in danger of eviction or
foreclosure because they have or will fall behind in rent
or mortgage payments because of loss of income due to
COVID-19.

Target Date March 2020 — May 2021

Estimate the number | 2000 households — 70% LMI

and type of families
that will benefit from
the proposed

activities
Location Description | Countywide
Planned Activities Pay up to 3 months’ rent/mortgage payments for

households with loss of income due to COVID-19.
Program will be targeted to assist households that have
either regained sufficient income or anticipate regaining
sufficient income through return to and/or new
employment to remain in their homes once payments
are made. Payments will be made directly to
landlord/mortgage company. Program will be
administered by MDHA or via an agreements through
Subrecipients.

Project Name HOPWA-CV Housing and Supportive Services
Target Area Metropolitan Statistical Area

Goals Supported Disaster Mitigation and Recovery in Response to
COVID-19

Needs Addressed COVID-19 Mitigation Preparation Opportunities

Funding HOPWA - $225,186

Description Housing; short-term rent, mortgage, and utility

assistance (STRMU); supportive services for persons
with HIV/AIDS and their families; program administrative
costs incurred by MDHA and Sponsor agencies

Target Date June 2020 — May 2021

Estimate the number | -Facility Based Rental Assistance: 53 persons

and type of families | -STRMU: 275 persons

that will benefit from | -Supportive Services: 2,320 persons

the proposed -Short-Term/Emergency Assistance — 15 persons
activities
ee—————————————————————————————————————————————————

Nashville-Davidson CARES Act Substantial Amendment 1 - 2019-2020 Program Year 2 Action Plan AP-16
OMB Control No. 2506-0117 (06/30/2019)




Location Description | Persons with HIV/AIDS in the Nashville-Davidson—
Murfreesboro-Franklin-MSA

e ———
Nashville-Davidson CARES Act Substantial Amendment 1 — 2019-2020 Program Year 2 Action Plan AP-17
OMB Control No. 2506-0117 (06/30/2019)




Planned Activities . $22,518.60 Admin to be awarded to Sponsor

agencies
. $202,667.40 for the following eligible activities:
0 Facility Based Rental/Housing Assistance— costs

associated with the rental subsidy assistance of clients
in project-based rental units OR facility-based housing
assistance costs for leasing a transitional/short-term
housing facility/unit (ex-hotels/motels)

o} STRMU - reasonable rent and mortgage
assistance payments that represent actual housing
costs; assistance varies per client depending on funds
available, tenant need, and program guidelines

o Tenant Based Rental Assistance — costs
associated with the placement of clients in permanent
housing in the private rental housing market; assistance
covers a portion of the rent based upon Fair Market Rent
or “reasonable rent” and operates similar to the Section
8 Housing Choice Voucher Program.

0 Supportive Services - services including, but are
not limited to, health, mental health assessments,
permanent housing placement, drug and alcohol abuse
treatment and counseling, day care, transportation
assistance, employment assistance, personal
assistance, nutritional services, intensive care when
required, and assistance in gaining access to local,
State, and Federal government benefits and services,
except that health services may only be provided to
individuals with acquired immunodeficiency syndrome or
related diseases and not to family members of these
individuals. Permanent Housing Placement assistance
is also covered under Supportive Services.

Funding for all activities will be awarded via the following
potential actions: a competitive Request for Applications
process; a direct application process, direct contracting
to eligible nonprofit sponsors, and other methods
allowed under the OMB 2 CFR 200 regulations.

M———'—-—__—___—'—___—__—-m—-___m
Nashville-Davidson CARES Act Substantial Amendment 1 - 2019-2020 Program Year 2 Action Plan AP-18
OMB Control No. 2506-0117 (06/30/2019)




Funding for all activities will be awarded via the following
potential actions: a competitive Request for Applications
process; a direct application process, direct contracting
to eligible nonprofit sponsors, and other methods
allowed under the OMB 2 CFR 200 regulations.

Project Name ESG-CV Programs and Services

Target Area Countywide

Goals Supported Disaster Mitigation and Recovery in Response to
COVID-19

Needs Addressed COVID-19 Prevention Measure Opportunities

Funding ESG-CV: $1,549,066.00

OMB Control No. 2506-0117 (06/30/2019)



Description Activities to support homeless persons - rapid re-housing
and homeless prevention assistance, shelter
operations/essential services, and outreach; program
and HMIS administration to help prevent, prepare for,
and respond to the coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19)
Target Date 5/31/22

Estimate the number | -Rapid Re-housing: 325 persons

and type of families | -Homeless Prevention: 75 persons

that will benefit from | -Shelter Operations/Essential Services: 2,000

the proposed -Outreach: 100 persons

activities

Numbers are estimates. Due to the unknown nature of
the COVID-19 impact, these numbers could be much
higher or lower dependent upon final activity programs
and outcomes.

Location Description | Countywide

E—%
Nashville-Davidson CARES Act Substantial Amendment 1 - 2019-2020 Program Year 2 Action Plan AP-20
OMB Control No. 2506-0117 (06/30/2019)



Planned Activities

. Up to $154,906.00 for Administration — retained
by MDHA for general management, oversight, and
coordination of ESG programs — 10% of ESG-CV
allocation allowed under the CARES Act

. $1,394,160.00 for the following eligible activities:
(0] Rapid Re-housing Assistance — includes, but is
not limited to, utilities, rental application fees, security
deposits, etc. and other eligible activities as defined in
the ESG regulations at 24 CFR, §576.104; §576.105
(Housing relocation and stabilization services) and
§576.106 (Short term and medium-term rental
assistance)

o] Homeless Prevention includes, but is not limited
to, rental assistance (such as arrears) and housing
relocation and stabilization services, etc., and other
eligible activities as defined in the ESG regulation at
24CFR, §576.103; §576.105 (Housing relocation and
stabilization services) and §576.106 (Short term and
medium-term rental assistance)

0 Shelter Operations™ - include, but are not limited
to, maintenance, rent, repair, renovation and/or
conversion etc., and other eligible activities as defined in
ESG regulations at 24 CFR §576.102

o] Essential Services* — include, but are not limited
to, case management, childcare, education services,
etc., and other eligible activities as defined in ESG
regulations at 24 CFR, §576.102

o] Street Outreach* — includes, but is not limited to,
the cost of engagement, case management, emergency
health and mental health, etc. and other eligible actives
as defined in the ESG regulation at 24 CFR, §576.101
o} HMIS — for costs associated with providing
technical assistance and training, data review, input, and
quality control for ESG subrecipients

*The cap for Operations, Essential Services and Street
Outreach is waived for CARES Act funds. No limitations
on these categories.

Nashville-Davidson CARES Act Substantial Amendment 1 — 2019-2020 Program Year 2 Action Plan AP-21

OMB Control No. 2506-0117 (06/30/2019)



Preference for activities will be given to priorities
identified in conjunction with Metropolitan Government
and the Office of Emergency Management (OEM) that
will contributecontribute to the larger Nashville-Davidson
County Homelessness Plan for alleviating COVID-19
concerns.

Funding for all activities, except Administration, will be
awarded via the following potential actions: a competitive
Request for Applications process; a direct application
process, direct contracting to eligible nonprofit
subrecipients, and other methods allowed under the
OMB 2 CFR 200 regulations.

%
Nashville-Davidson CARES Act Substantial Amendment 1 — 2019-2020 Program Year 2 Action Plan ApP-22
OMB Control No. 2506-0117 (06/30/2019)



Contribute to the larger Nashville-Davidson County
Homelessness Plan for alleviating COVID-19 concerns.

Funding for all activities, except Administration, will be
awarded via the following potential actions: a competitive
Request for Applications process; a direct application
process, direct contracting to eligible nonprofit
subrecipients, and other methods allowed under the
OMB 2 CFR 200 regulations.

e e e e s e ——ee—— e, e ——— e
Nashville-Davidson CARES Act Substantial Amendment 1 — 2019-2020 Program Year 2 Action Plan AP-23
OMB Control No. 2506-0117 (06/30/2019)



AP-50 Geographic Distribution — 91.220(f)

All CARES Act activities will provided throughout Metro Nashville-Davidson County.

%—*——_—_
Nashville-Davidson CARES Act Substantial Amendment 1 - 2019-2020 Program Year 2 Action Plan AP-24
OMB Control No. 2506-0117 (06/30/2019)



METROPOLITAN DEVELOPMENT AND HOSUING AGENCY

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

June 1, 2020
TO: MDHA Board of Commissioners
FROM: James E. Harbison, Executive Director

SUBJECT: Review of Status of Items Requested at MDHA Board Retreat

On Wednesday January 29, the Board of Commissioners of the Metropolitan Development and
Housing Agency (“MDHA” or the “Agency”) met at the Agency’s Madison Towers location for
a Strategic Planning session.

The Board Strategic Planning Session covered a wide range of topics — from MDHA’s current
operations and the legal aspects of Redevelopment Districts to the roles and responsibilities of
the Board and the structure of various financing alternatives for the new construction of
affordable housing.

There were 25 specific requests for actions that came out of the Board Retreat, 13 of which have
been completed. Of the 12 remaining tasks, nine are being worked on by MDHA staff and three
have been assigned to a committee of the Board.

The detail of those items including expected completion dates for the remaining items is included
in the attached spreadsheet and summarized below.

Completed items

e Annual review of legal matters

e Presentation to Board describing New Market Tax Credits
e Presentation to Board describing Low Income Housing Tax Credit
e Presentation of Annual Audit

e Assessment Tax Incremental Financing portfolio

¢ Amplified audio for Board meetings

e Board materials prepared on 8x11 paper

e Review of Board Committee structure

e MDHA scoring comparison

e Calendar invites for Commissioners for all Board Meetings
e Restart of Thursday Committee meetings

e Specific property ownership inquiry

e National article submission

Items being worked on by MDHA staff
e Review and update of Vanguard Retirement Plan Investment Policy

e FEthics training for Board members



e Promise Zone and Opportunity Zone introduction for Board members

e Redevelopment District review process

e Financial Review & FY 2021 Budget presentation

e Cash Investment Policy review

e Research SEIU MOU content in comparison to like agencies

e MDHA Development & Envision Cayce Resource Plan

e Presentation on shared equity homeownership model for non-profit partnerships on land

Items assigned to a Committee of the MDHA Board
e Bylaw review including changing December Meeting
e Visions Statement Review and Working Group

e Management Review Committee

MDHA staff currently does not expect an issues preventing the completion of the remaining

items in a timely manner.
U

James E. Harbison

Attachment



Anaus |y pue seancsay mm_wul.-nx BIQEPIOHY VOVHA 07 uer me) Ly [TH e 0707 T1 924 UQISSIWLIQNS I[Ny |edolieN

EEENES) 0Z0% 11993 AINDUj SISI3UMG AUadolg 3RS |

Buiohug ) 0Z0Z 5 U2EW)| SBUIPDW IIRIWWOJ AEpRInyL JO pelsay

BuicIug Q12jdwo) 0202 TT 924 N33 PIECE || J0f SDUAU LEPURED

Edwo) 0 uospedwod Buposs vHOW
BUEHUD 91910003 MBNAaI [ERju) 0TA3 PIN 0207 T1 993 2INNIS FAYLLILIG) pieos|

Aadwo))] 0202 TT 94 Joded T1X8

andwed 00T 11 Q¥ opny paylduny

TITWOD [jas ]| OZOZ 1 ey 0Z0Z 0T 4By (g jeiausuld pausisidny D3 ALIRd PE] Juaissasey O|0JuOg BUBURUL [PUswaisul X2 ] |

SHUN I35 PIPUHE 'SYUM PAJUsaI ABIRII5I0 VHAW ‘Ul IPNE 7 Bulunaay 020Z ¥T |udy 0202 vT judy UPNY [ENUUY

UGrEIuaTesd VaHL 035703 0202 T 954 070Z 1193 3paI) XL BUlSnoR suioau] Mo

uojENFsA JMEMIY DI 0707 1T 924 0202 TT g24 SYpaI] ¥e L ey MON

uonewasaid jasuno) yHIW 0ZAd 1D pe 0202 7T AeN MIInY Jane (ella] [enuly

B3jdUIG) TH5EL

"020¢ 13qW23Q O UDISUTING 16k #UD (G10E 550 PAPUS 198A1U09 O3 IUBWAINDYY [EnUTY DZOE 11 Bndny 0Z0Z 11993 PIWILOT MBI UFLABTUEN|

o AJuMINs-41 55 03 yied e -u:%ﬂzmﬂcn:- PUB 385 3A1Y |ENRIAIRU| PUE $37)IW ) 35040 APUMWES B SUGIEIALS YHOW., 0ZA4 pu3 aall Anoug BUiom pue Mamay Jusweiesg BLBJSIA
O€ 335 0ZAd 40 pu3 agl 1.y siamog ey fm D Bunsaly sag 0 BuiBury BUIP{aU| mainal MEjAg

SYSE) IURUWIOY

ssead XI5 150} Ul PRIRUDD put] ON TZM TEAd| PUB| D SEYLBUMEed J)j0JE-U0 1D} [SpowW diysiaumoruoy AYnba paieys

Suj08ug 0207 8 12340130 UE]d 92In0S2Y 33AE] UCISIALY g IUaWd0[aAR] YHOW

SN0W J1auy uo pal3RIN0d s,vH Jolew U issanbas N|35 M3u Suppey NI3S dueduy TZA pleog Jaquuasoy gu.mmﬂv__. 0] UEHLIEdWI0D U] JUSIUOD MBI N13S yueasay

5573014 129png Ul aphjau| 0ZAIPu3|  OZOE 8 '€ Jaquimdag MDAy AT|od 10 PLIEAAL| Yie|

5503010 138pnG Jo 1ed BuloRUG |eNUUY|  0Z0T § € Jequimdag| 13UPRG TZ0C Ad 8 Mainay (EpURNg

COHOL "PUSIP 3Ny "ALIOYINE W0 :MeIAS] LiRIgoig wowdojarapay AUtd PE 2391007 TBdoTS ¥R WEIIUBIS SINSIP 7T TZAd 40 puy 0207 & sunj SS320.d My L2 IusLdojanapay
0CA4 pu3 OZ0L 8 Jaquiagy UOIINPOLIL) 5U0z Ajinuioddo pue suoZ sy

UO[IEUIPJ0O? [B5UNGT) PIECY '3 HH 0ZAd 1834 PIW 0Z0Z 9 1snany| Auiupe] D1y13

[B{GEeAE 3wy 15T) A 40} pasodord XIGEAN JGINDD D1 NP |8A211 03 MQE[IEAZ J0U DAFIUISAIOE) prEnBUER, 0CA4 1D PE QZ0T 6 ANy A3}[0d UAISIAU] UE|d JUSWINGY PIENTUER JO BIEFAN pUE MBADY
WAWe) (RIS M3 30 a1eq idoy|

0202 62 A=y __ LIvHa syse) § sisanbay jean0y 519 2 O P2R0E YHOW




10K households in, near
Nashville, others aided

Dave Paulson
Nashville Tennessean
USA TODAY NETWORK - TENNESSEE

It's been more than 40 years since
Oprah Winfrey moved away from
Nashville and began to build an em-
pire. But she still thinks of Music City
as home - and a community she's
compelled to help during the COVID-19
pandemic,

The media mogul made a $2 million
donation providing food . relief to
10,000 households in the Nashville
area. The donation is part of Winfrey's
$10 million COVID-19 Relief Fund,
which also benefits underserved com-
munities in her “home cities” of Chi-
cago, Milwaukee and Kosciusko, Mis-
sissippi, among others,

‘The real need is
feeding the people’

To determine needs in Nashville,
Winfrey held a conference call with a
group of pastors from ‘10 area
churches, including Bishop Joseph
Warren Walker III of Mount Zion Bap-
tist Church.

“I wanted to go directly to the peo-
ple,” Winfrey said on a Zoom call with
reporters on Tuesday. “... The bishops
said from the beginning, ‘The real need
is feeding people.’ ”

The result was NashvilleNurtures, a
nonprofit partnership between Mt.
Zion and Tennessee State University,
Winfrey’s alma mater. Through the
NashvilleNurtures website, 10,000
households applied for and received a
$200 Kroger gift card.

Bishop Walker said he and TSU
President Glenda Glover consulted lo-
cal business, civic and religious lead-
ers with knowledge of those who'd
been adversely impacted by the pan-
demie, '

Sixty-eight percent of applicants
reported they were single heads of
households, and 63 percent said they
had lost a job or had their salary re-
duced.

TENNESSEAN.COM ¢ THURSDAY, MAY 21, 2020 1 3A

Oprah gives $2M in food relief to area

The $2 million donation is part of
Oprah Winfrey’s $10 million COVID-19
Relief Fund. cOURTESY WW/GEORGE BURNS

“We didn’t understand the depth of
the need,” Bishop Walker said. “We had
a sense of it, but in terms of the human
stories and the gratitude that came from
that, this was the thing that really gave
them hope.”

Winfrey tied the donation to what
she’d learned on “The Oprah Winfrey
Show” and its famed “Favorite Things”
giveaway episodes: “The gift was one
thing, but the fact that you could get the
gift was even bigger.

“The $200 fills that need, but the fact
that it happened to you gives you a
sense of hope — that something good
can also happen again to you. ... That’s
what I was trying to do in this moment.
And often I believe in the adage that you
spend your money, and your charitable,
philanthropy work is to raise people up
and to teach them how to fish for them-
selves. But during this pandemic, what I
recognize is sometimes people just need
a piece of fish.”

That elicited smiles from Bishop
Walker and Glover, who were also on
Tuesday’s Zoom call. Though they of-
fered no shortage of praise and grati-
tude towards Winfrey, she continued to
defer tq them as leaders of the commu-
nity she came of age in.

Winfrey spent her
teen years in Nashville

Winfrey moved to Nashville when
she was 14 years old. She lived with her
father, Vernon Winfrey, and attended
East Nashville High School and TSU.

While still in high school, she began

her broadcasting career at radio station
WVOL, which led to a TV anchor posi-
tion at WLAC (now WTVF). She left
Nashville for another anchor gig in Bal-
timore in 1976,

Butbefore all that, her very first job —
unpaid, she notes — also dealt with pro-
viding food to the Nashville community.
After school, she’d work behind the
counter at an East Nashville market co-
owned by her father. “My father used to
have that jar at the front of the store
where you'd sell cookies for a penny,”
she told The Tennessean.

“And it made no sense to me that
you've got to sell a hundred cookies — a
hundred damn cookies — to make a dol-
lar! You could be here all day, and you
only made a dollar! I have to say, not
long ago, T was saying to my dad, ‘You
got me working all that time, and you
never paid me anything.  wasn’t getting
paid!” And he goes, ‘You made up forit. "

Winfrey established her Oprah Win-
frey’s Charitable Foundation in 1993. Its
efforts have included the construction
of the Oprah Winfrey Leadership Acad-
emy for Gitls in South Africa, $25 mil-
lion in scholarships to Morehouse Col-
lege through the Oprah Winfrey Schol-
ars Program and a recent $1 million do-
nation to the United Negro College
Fund.

Winfrey told reporters the pandemic
has showed “how we are all connected,
and how we are one.” But she also said it
“deeply frightens” her that some people
haven’t come to that conclusion during
this time. :

“We all had a time out, got sent to our
rooms with enough reflected time to
look at the bigger picture of what this
moment means. And I think a lot of peo-
ple went to their rooms, and they were
playing. And they didn't get it. What
really frightens me is you're gonna have
to get another lesson, and another time
out before you can see it. That it's gonna
have to hit your family, your neighbors,
your community, before you ¢an see it.

“I don’t spend a lot of energy worried
about, ‘How do I get other people to do
... I'just focus on, ‘OK, what can I do?’ I
think the message for this story for me is
(telling) other people, ‘OK, this is what I
could do, this is my tithe for right now.
What is yours? ”



]
TENNESSEAN.COM 1 MONDAY, JUNE 1, 2920

0004211047
NOTICE OF MEETINGS

The Joint Finonce and Devel-
opment Commiftee of the
Board of Commissioners of the
Metropolitan Development and
Housing Agency will meet at
8:30 a.m. on Thursday, June 4,
2020. The meeting will take
place electronically out of a ne-
cessity to protect the health,
safety, and welfare of Tennes-
seans in light of the COVID-19
outbreak. Members of the pub-
lic who desire to dial-in to the
meeting should email the
MDHA Communications Direc-
tor Jamie Berry at jberry@nas
hville-mdha.org, before 4 p.m.,
Wednesday, June 3, 2020,

SUNDAY, MAY 31,2020 ! THE TENNESSEAN

0004212167
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

und Request for Public Comment on PHA Annual Plan

for the Metropolitun Development and Housing Agency
The Metropolitan Development and Housing Agency {MDHA), in
complionce with Section 511 of the Quality Housing and Work Re-
sponsibility Act of 1998, has developed its Annual Plan for the peri-
o beginning Ocfober 1, 2020. The Plan is largely focused only on
its use of Housing Cholce Vouchers (Section 8).
With the MDHA offices closed to the public during the COVID-19
crisis, the Plan has been posted for public view on the Agency's
website at hitps:/bit.Iy/PHAPIGN2020.
A public hearing on the Plan will be held remately by MDHAS
Board of Commissioners af noon on Tuesdoy, July 14, 2020, Al
written comments received prior fo the public hearing s well as
all comments presented at the public hearing will be considered
before MDHA finalizes the Plan and submits it to the U. S, Depart-
ment of Housing and Urban Development (MUD). Anvone interest-
ed in maoking o public comment during the virtual hearing should
email MDHA Direcior of Communications Jumie Berry af iberry@
nashville-mdha.ora before 4 p.m. July 13, for dial-in Information.
Pleolse make sure fo include your nome and phone number in vour
email.




